
 

01107.0001/770779.1  DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE SUISUN CITY COUNCIL  

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2022 

5:30 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 
 

PER CITY POLICY, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES IF NOT FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED 

FOR YOU.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

 

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:  842 3706 6045 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 4pm) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 
 
 

ROLL CALL 

Council / Board Members 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers/Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


March 15, 2022 City Council/Housing Authority Page 2 

 

  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

CLOSED SESSION  

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54950 the Suisun City Council and Suisun City 

Housing Authority will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of: 

City Council 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR     

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency negotiator:  City Manager  

Employee organizations: 

Unrepresented Employees; 

SCEA (Suisun City Employees’ Association); 

SCMPEA (Suisun City Management and Professional Employees’ Association). 

SCPOA (Suisun City Police Officers Association). 

 

2. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 Real Property Identified by APN 0173-

010-230, located at 318 Merganser Drive 

Negotiating Party: City Manager  

Subject: Price and Terms of Payment  

Parties Negotiating With: TC Property Management, Ltd. 

 

Joint City Council / Housing Authority 

3. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 Real Property Identified by APN’s 0030-

295-030, 0032-230-290, 0032-230-310, 0032-230-280, located at Highway 12 on 

the Intersection of Marina Boulevard 

Negotiating Party: City Manager  

Subject: Price and Terms of Payment  

Parties Negotiating With: Norton Capital Inc. 

 

City Council 

4. Conference with Legal Counsel - Significant Exposure to Litigation/Initiation of Litigation (1 

potential case) 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(1) and (d)(4). 

 

5. PERSONNEL MATTERS 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) et seq. the Suisun City Council 

will hold a Closed Session for the purpose of Public Employee Performance Evaluation: City 

Manager 

 



March 15, 2022 City Council/Housing Authority Page 3 

 

  

CONVENE OPEN SESSION 

Announcement of Actions Taken, if any, in Closed Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 

and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 

Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City. Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 

Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 

open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours. An agenda packet is also 

located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review. The City may charge photocopying charges 

for requested copies of such documents. Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 
PLEASE NOTE: 

1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M. Ordinarily, no new items will be taken up after the 
10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting. The agendas have been prepared with the hope that all 

items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 
3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun City, CA. 

Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;  

• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA. 

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting of March 15, 

2022 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 

DEPARTMENTS: AREA CODE (707)  

ADMINISTRATION 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 0  ◼  PLANNING 4 2 1 - 7 3 3 5  ◼  BUILDING 4 2 1 - 7 3 1 0  ◼  FINANCE 4 2 1 - 7 3 2 0  

FIRE 4 2 5 - 9 1 3 3  ◼  RECREATION & COMMUNITY SERVICES 4 2 1 - 7 2 0 0  ◼  POLICE 4 2 1 - 7 3 7 3  ◼  PUBLIC WORKS 4 2 1 - 7 3 4 0  

SUCCESSOR AGENCY 4 2 1 - 7 3 0 9  FAX 4 2 1 - 7 3 6 6  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

Lori Wilson, Mayor 

Alma Hernandez, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Jane Day 

Michael J. Hudson 

Wanda Williams 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

First and Third Tuesday 

Every Month 
, 

 

 

 
A G E N D A 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL ACTING AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY, 

AND HOUSING AUTHORITY 

TUESDAY, MARCH 15, 2022 

7:00 P.M. 

SUISUN CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS -- 701 CIVIC CENTER BOULEVARD -- SUISUN CITY, CALIFORNIA 

 

NOTICE 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953, subdivision (b), and in accordance with the provisions of SB 361 

(2021), the following Council/Successor Agency/Housing Authority meeting includes teleconference participation 

by: Council/Board Members Jane Day, Michael Hudson, Wanda Williams, Mayor Pro Tem Alma Hernandez, and 

Mayor/Chair Lori Wilson. Teleconference locations are on file at City Hall, 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City, CA 

94585. 
 

PER CITY POLICY, MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE REQUIRED TO WEAR FACE MASKS WHILE IN CITY 

FACILITIES IF NOT FULLY VACCINATED.  IF YOU DO NOT HAVE A FACE MASK, ONE WILL BE PROVIDED 

FOR YOU.  

 

THE CITY COUNCIL HAS RESUMED IN-PERSON MEETINGS IN ADDITION TO ZOOM. A LIMITED NUMBER 

OF SEATS ARE AVAILABLE, TO RESERVE A SEAT PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK AT clerk@suisun.com 

OR 707 421-7302.   

ZOOM MEETING INFORMATION:  

WEBSITE: https://zoom.us/join 

MEETING ID:   839 7008 0379 
CALL IN PHONE NUMBER: (707) 438-1720 

 

REMOTE PUBLIC COMMENT IS AVAILABLE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

BY EMAILING CLERK@SUISUN.COM (PRIOR TO 6 PM) OR  

VIA WEBSITE OR PHONE APPLICATION, ZOOM 

 

(If attending the meeting via phone press *9 to raise your hand and *6 to unmute/mute for public comment.) 
 

(Next Ord. No. – 791) 

 (Next City Council Res. No. 2022 – 33) 

Next Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency Res. No. SA2022 - 01) 

 (Next Housing Authority Res. No. HA2022 – 01) 

mailto:clerk@suisun.com
https://zoom.us/join
mailto:CLERK@SUISUN.COM


March 15, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 2 

 

 

 

ROLL CALL 

Council / Board Members 

Pledge of Allegiance  

Invocation  

CONFLICT OF INTEREST NOTIFICATION  
(Any items on this agenda that might be a conflict of interest to any Councilmembers / Boardmembers should be 

identified at this time.) 

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

1. City Manager/Executive Director/Staff 

PRESENTATION/APPOINTMENTS 
(Presentations, Awards, Proclamations, Appointments). 

Proclamations Presented at Meeting 

2. Presentation of Proclamation to Solano American Red Cross Representatives Nanette Shamieh 

and Susan Reese Proclaiming the Month of March 2022 as Red Cross Month in Suisun City -

(Wilson: lwilson@suisun.com)  

3. Presentation to Community Services Officer Pam Greenwood, retiring after 21 years of service 

with the Suisun City Police Department – (Wilson:  lwilson@suisun.com).  

Mayoral Appointments of Council Boards, Commissions and Committees 

4. Approving Appointment of Solano Economic Development Corporation Board Member – 

(Wilson:  lwilson@suisun.com). 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Consent calendar items requiring little or no discussion may be acted upon with one motion. 

City Council 

5. Council Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-__:  A Resolution of 

the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists and 

authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through April 14, 2022 – 

(Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).  

6. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022 - ____: Accepting the 2021 Annual Progress Report 

of the Suisun City General Plan and Housing Element – (Bermudez: jbermudez@suisun.com).  

7. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving a Priority List of Community 

Events for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 – (Lofthus: klofthus@suisun.com).  

8. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:   Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a 

Contract on the City’s Behalf with GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. for the Development of a 

Parks and Facilities Master Plan in the amount of $135,525 and authorizing the City Manager to 

approve change orders up to 10% of the original contract amount– (Lofthus:  

klofthus@suisun.com). 

9. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 

Contract Change Order on the City’s Behalf with Lamassu Utility Services, Inc. for the Highway 

mailto:lwilson@suisun.com
mailto:lwilson@suisun.com
mailto:lwilson@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:jbermudez@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com


March 15, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 3 

 

 

 

12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project in the amount of $231,169.33 for a 

total contract of $312,905.46 and Authorize up to $63,000 for Contingencies – (Vue:  

nvue@suisun.com).  

10. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving the Application for Grant Funds 

from the Recreational Trails Program – (Vue: nvue@suisun.com).  

11. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Accepting the Rectangular Rapid Flashing 

Beacon Project, Federal Project No. HSIPL-5032(033), as Complete, and Authorizing the City 

Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the Project - (Vue:  nvue@suisun.com).  

12. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Endorsing its support for Amending the 

Governance Structure of CAP Solano Joint Powers Authority – (Folsom: gfolsom@suisun.com).  

13. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Resolution of support for designation of the 

Wednesday Club of Suisun on the National Register of Historic Places – (Folsom: 

gfolsom@suisun.com).  

Joint City Council / Suisun City Council Acting as Successor Agency 

14. Council/Agency Approval of February 2022 Payroll Warrants in the Amount of $525,413.26, 

and Council/Agency Approval of the February 2022 Accounts Payable Warrants in the 

Amount of $935,744.17  – (Finance). 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(Request by citizens to discuss any matter under our jurisdiction other than an item posted on this agenda per 

California Government Code §54954.3. Comments are limited to no more than 3 minutes unless allowable by the 

Mayor/Chair. Speaker cards are available on the table near the entry of the meeting room and should be given to the 

City Clerk. By law, no prolonged discussion or action may be taken on any item raised during the public comment 

period, although informational answers to questions may be given and matters may be referred for placement on a 

future agenda.) 

PUBLIC HEARING   None 

GENERAL BUSINESS   

City Council 

15. Council Discussion and Direction: Community Christmas Tree Replacement – (Lofthus: 

klofthus@suisun.com).  

REPORTS:  (Informational items only) 

16. Council Updates 

a. Council/Boardmembers 

b. Mayor 

17. Non-Discussion Items 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

A complete packet of information containing staff reports and exhibits related to each item for the open session of this meeting, 

and provided to the City Council, are available for public review at least 72 hours prior to a Council /Agency/Authority Meeting at 

Suisun City Hall 701 Civic Center Blvd., Suisun City.  Agenda related writings or documents provided to a majority of the 

Council/Board/Commissioners less than 72 hours prior to a Council/Agency/Authority meeting related to an agenda item for the 

mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:nvue@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:gfolsom@suisun.com
mailto:klofthus@suisun.com


March 15, 2022 City Council / Successor Agency / Housing Authority Page 4 

 

 

 

open session of this meeting will be made available for public inspection during normal business hours.  An agenda packet is also 

located at the entrance to the Council Chambers during the meeting for public review.  The City may charge photocopying charges 

for requested copies of such documents.  Assistive listening devices may be obtained at the meeting 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 

1. The City Council/Agency/Authority hopes to conclude its public business by 10:00 P.M.  Ordinarily, no new items will be 

taken up after the 10:00 P.M. cutoff and any items remaining will be agendized for the next meeting.  The agendas have been 

prepared with the hope that all items scheduled will be discussed within the time allowed. 

2. Suisun City is committed to providing full access to these proceedings; individuals with special needs may call 421-7300. 

3. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours in advance of regular meetings at Suisun City Hall, 701 Civic Center Boulevard, Suisun 

City, CA.  Agendas may be posted at other Suisun City locations including: 

• Suisun City Fire Station, 621 Pintail Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Suisun City Senior Center, 318 Merganser Drive, Suisun City, CA; 

• Joe Nelson Center, 611 Village Drive, Suisun City, CA;  

• Harbor Master Office, 800 Kellogg Street, Suisun City, CA. 

I, Donna Pock, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Suisun City, declare under penalty of perjury that the above agenda for the meeting 

of March 15, 2022 was posted and available for review, in compliance with the Brown Act. 

 



l9flia oJ tire Mayo,t

$'uisun <!Citp, <!California 

llroclamation 
�� 
� 

WHEREAS, in times of crisis, people in Suisun City come together to care for one another. This 
humanitarian spirit is part of the foundation of our community and is exemplified by American Red Cross 
volunteers and donors. March is American Red Cross Month, a special time to honor the kindness of our 
volunteers and neighbors who aid families in need every day as they carry out the organization's 140-year 
mission of preventing and alleviating suffering; and 

WHEREAS, Despite the ongoing challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic, The 
American Red Cross continue to help our neighbors in their time of greatest need by delivering shelter, care 
and hope during disasters; making our community safer through its lifesaving Home Fire Campaign; 
providing lifesaving blood; teaching skills that save lives; and supporting military veterans and their 
families; and 

WHEREAS, last year in Solano County, American Red Cross volunteers helped 94 families 
affected by home fires providing emotional support, addressing immediate needs and helping families 
recover with emergency financial assistance or community resources; collected 326 units of lifesaving 
blood; hosted 23 blood drives; taught skills that save lives to 5,737 community members; provided 
international humanitarian aid; and supported 563 military members and their families; and 

WHEREAS, Red Cross volunteers deployed 552 times, dedicating 61,930 volunteer hours to 
assist neighbors in California and around the country during 41 different disaster relief operations of all 
sizes, including wildfires in Oregon and California and Hurricane Ida; and 

WHEREAS, every day, people in our community depend on the American Red Cross, whose 
lifesaving mission is powered by the devotion of volunteers, generosity of donors and partnership of 
community organizations. We dedicate the month of March to all those who support its vital work to prevent 
and alleviate human suffering in the face of emergencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lori D. Wilson, Mayor of the City of Suisun City, hereby proclaim the 
month of March 2022 as 

"Red Cross Month" 

in the City of Suisun City and encourage residents to support this organization and its noble humanitarian 
m1ss1on. 

a,�Ad� 9' ku��,4e7� 
���.diJ,.udbb� 

Lori D. Wilson, Mayor 

ATTEST:. _ ____;;cvJ_.:�::..----=::....ac;.ac�""""'�=------:;..�---=-�-=. "-=-----

DA TE: ____ ------=..;M-=-=a
=:.rc=h=-=.;15;..:r,,..:::;2�02=-=2::;..._ ____ _ 

Item 2

1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

2



PREPARED/APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE: March 15, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Consideration and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 2022-__: A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local emergency persists 

and authorizing the use of remote teleconference meeting procedures by the City’s legislative 

bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) et seq., through April 14, 2022. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance 

 

BACKGROUND:   A number of laws have changed since the beginning of the COVID pandemic 

related to the Brown Act as it relates to teleconferenced public meetings, both from Governor 

Newsom’s Executive Orders and recently from the enactment of Assembly Bill 361, which took 

effect October 1, 2021, allowing continued remote teleconference meetings without traditional 

Brown Act compliance, provided certain findings can be made related to the ongoing state of 

emergency and subject to adherence to certain new noticing and public participation requirements.  

 

The City, as all public agencies in California, must now invoke and adhere to AB 361 and its 

modifications on certain elements of remote public meetings, or else revert to traditional Brown 

Act compliance. The major change associated with continuing remote meetings under AB 361 is 

that the public must now be allowed to make comments in real-time during the public comment 

period, either telephonically or electronically (such as by Zoom). No physical location for public 

comment need be provided.  

 

The other major change is that all public agencies, if they want to continue to conduct public 

meetings remotely, must adopt a resolution every 30 days making the findings of necessity to do so 

and affirming the measures in place to allow remote public comments by the public. 

 

On October 19, 2021 the City of Suisun City passed a resolution proclaiming that a local 

emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) 

et seq., for the initial period of October 19, 2021 through November 18, 2021. 

 

STAFF REPORT:  This is a recurring resolution, after 30 days following the initial invocation of 

AB 361, continued reliance on AB 361 for subsequent meetings requires the following: 

1. Either the “state of emergency” must remain active,  or state or local officials have imposed 

or recommended measures to promote social distancing; and 

2. No later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the first time under AB 361 rules, and 

every 30 days thereafter, the legislative body, by majority vote, finds that it has 

reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and at least one of the following 

circumstances exist: 

Item 5

3



o The state of emergency continues to impact the ability of the members to meet 

safely in person; or 

o State or local officials continue to impose recommended measures to promote 

social distancing 

Continued reliance on AB 361 will require adoption of a new resolution making the required 

findings every 30 days. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2022- ____: A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City proclaiming a local 

emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote teleconference meeting 

procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by government code section 54953(e) 

et seq., through April 14, 2022. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Resolution 2022-___ A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Suisun City 

proclaiming a local emergency persists and authorizing the transition to use of remote 

teleconference meeting procedures by City’s the legislative bodies, as authorized by 

government code section 54953(e) et seq., through April 14, 2022. 

 

Item 5

4



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN 

CITY PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS AND 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSITION TO USE OF REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETING PROCEDURES BY CITY’S THE 

LEGISLATIVE BODIES, AS AUTHORIZED BY GOVERNMENT 

CODE SECTION 54953(E) ET SEQ., THROUGH APRIL 14, 2022 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Suisun City is committed to preserving 

and nurturing public access, transparency, observation and participation in its meetings and 

the meetings of each of its legislative bodies; and  

 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the City’s legislative bodies are open and public, as 

required by the Ralph M. Brown Act, codified as Government Code sections 54950 et seq., so 

that any member of the public may attend, participate, and observe the City’s legislative 

bodies conduct their business; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, as amended by Assembly Bill 361 (2021), amending 

Government Code section 54953(e) et seq., allows for remote teleconferencing observation 

and participation in meetings by members of a legislative body and members of the public, 

without compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject 

to the existence of certain conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, the initial required condition is a declaration of a state of emergency by 

the Governor pursuant to the California Emergency Services Act, Government Code section 

8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of 

persons and property within the state and within the boundaries of the City, as provided in 

Government Code section 8558; and  

 

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, pursuant to Government Code Section 8625, 

Governor Newsom declared the existence of a state of emergency for the State of California, 

in response to the outbreak of respiratory illness due to a novel coronavirus (a disease now 

known as COVID-19); and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, the City’s Director of Emergency Services declared 

a local emergency for the City pursuant to Chapter 2.32 of the Suisun City Municipal Code, 

finding that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have arisen 

within the City as a result of the COVID-19 virus and that these conditions are or are likely to 

be beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2020-40, 

ratifying the Director of Emergency Services’ declaration of local emergency; and 

 

WHEREAS, Government Code section 54953(e) further requires that state or local 

officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing; or, the 

legislative body of the City finds that meeting in person would present imminent risk to the 

health and safety of attendees; and  

 

Item 5 
Attachment 1

5



 

Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that such emergency conditions now exist in 

the City, such that meeting in person for the meetings of the legislative bodies of the City 

would present imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees as a result of the increased 

risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus among those in attendance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that the state of emergency due to the COVID-

19 virus and the conditions related thereto has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions 

of extreme peril to the safety of persons within the City that are likely to be beyond the 

control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City, and thereby affirms, 

authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency persists throughout the City, 

and ratifies the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds that, as a consequence of the existing local 

emergency, the legislative bodies of the City shall conduct their meetings without compliance 

with Government Code section 54953(b)(3), and shall instead comply with the remote 

teleconference meeting requirements as authorized by Government Code section 54953(e) et 

seq.; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Council affirms that it will allow for observation and participation by 

Councilmembers and the public by allowing limited in-person attendance, as well as allowing 

public participation and comment in real time via Zoom or by telephone, in an effort to 

protect the constitutional and statutory rights of all attendees.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

FINDS, RESOLVES, AND ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein 

Resolution by reference. 

 

Section 2. The Council hereby recognizes and affirms the existence and conditions of 

a state of emergency as proclaimed by the Governor, the existence of emergency conditions in 

the City, and affirms, authorizes, and proclaims that the existence of a local emergency 

persists throughout the City. 

 

Section 3. The Council hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s 

Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

 

Section 4. Further, the Council finds that holding the meetings of the City’s legislative 

bodies in person with no limitations to attendance would present imminent risk to the health 

and safety of attendees as a result of the increased risk of the spread of the COVID-19 virus 

among those in attendance, as required by Government Code section 54953(e) et seq. 

 

Section 5. The City Manager and legislative bodies of the City are hereby authorized 

and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution 

including, conducting open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

Item 5 
Attachment 1

6



 

Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 3 of 3 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be 

effective until the earlier of (i) April 14, 2022, or (ii) such time the Council adopts a 

subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to extend the 

time during which the legislative bodies of the City may continue to teleconference without 

compliance with Government Code section 54953(b)(3). 

  

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on March 15, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022.  

 

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

 

 

  

Item 5 
Attachment 1

7



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

8



______________________________________________________________________________ 

PREPARED BY: John Kearns, Senior Planner 

REVIEWED BY:  Jim Bermudez, Development Services Director 

APPROVED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE: March 15, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022 - ____: Accepting the 2021 

Annual Progress Report of the Suisun City General Plan and Housing Element. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: There would be no fiscal impact associated with adoption of the proposed 

Resolution.  Failure to adopt the Resolution could result in the loss of future grant funding.   

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Revitalize Historic Downtown; Develop Sustainable Economy; 

Ensure Public Safety; Provide Good Governance, Ensure Fiscal Solvency; Enhance Environment.  
 

BACKGROUND:  The Annual Report on the General Plan has been prepared in response to the 

California Government Code, which requires that the planning agency shall: “Provide an annual 

report each year, to the legislative body, the Office of Planning and Research, and the Department 

of Housing and Community Development regarding the status of the plan and progress in its 

implementation, including the progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs.” 

 

STAFF REPORT:  The General Plan represents Suisun City’s future vision of the City in the 

year 2035. The Plan identifies the general location for future land uses, including residential, 

commercial, and industrial areas, and desired population and building densities throughout the 

community. The Plan states future goals for Community Character and Design, Land Use, 

Transportation, Economic Development, Housing, Open Space and Conservation, Community 

Facilities and Services, and Public Health and Safety. 

 

The report describes the City’s progress in implementing the policies and programs of the General 

Plan, including key accomplishments, as well as the City’s progress on providing its share of the 

Regional Housing Needs Allocation (Attachment 2). The attachment includes an accounting of 

progress in addressing adopted housing policies as well as information in table form regarding the 

number of units that have been constructed in the City by calendar year. This information is used 

to track housing production at the state level. The report of the General Plan (Attachment 1) is 

divided into topic areas based on the City’s General Plan Elements. It is important to understand 

that the items provided under each element are only for the prior calendar year and not the life of 

the Plan. 

 

The Annual Progress Report informs the Planning Commission, the City Council, and State agencies 

about the progress in implementing the Suisun City General Plan during the calendar year 2021. This 

report is the 7th annual report since the City Council adopted the 2035 General Plan Update and 

2015-2023 Housing Element, respectively in May 2015. 

 

Item 6

9



On March 8, 2022, the Planning Commission accepted a report on the Annual Progress Report. 

The Commission inquired about progress toward the City’s RHNA numbers as well as background 

information/clarification on how California Housing and Community Development views the 

progress of jurisdictions. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Council adopt Resolution No. 2022 - 

____: Accepting the 2021 Annual Progress Report of the Suisun City General Plan and Housing 

Element. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022 - ____: Accepting the 2020 Annual Progress 

Report of the Suisun City General Plan and Housing Element. 

A. Annual Progress Report CY 2021. 

B. Annual Housing Progress Report CY 2021 (A larger document is available for 

review in the City Clerk’s Office). 

2. Power Point Presentation 

 

Item 6

10



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022 - 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

ACCEPTING THE 2021 ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT OF THE SUISUN CITY 

GENERAL PLAN AND HOUSING ELEMENT 

 

 WHEREAS, On May 5, 2015, the City Council adopted the 2035 General Plan Update; 

on May 19, 2015, the City Council adopted the 2015-2023 Housing Element, on November 1, 

2016 the City Council adopted the Waterfront District Specific Plan and on March 21, 2017 the 

City Council adopted a Comprehensive Amendment to Title 18 of the Suisun City Code; and 

 WHEREAS, An Annual Report is required for all General Plans by California 

Government Code Section 65400(b), which states “the planning agency shall provide an annual 

report to the legislative body on the status of the plan and progress in its implementation, 

including the progress in meeting its share of regional housing needs…”; and 

 WHEREAS, Staff has presented the Annual Report on the General Plan for 2021 to the 

City Council, and the City Council has reviewed said Annual Report; and 

 WHEREAS, The Annual Report is not considered a project under the provisions of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City that based on its review, the City Council accepts the 2021 Annual Report on the Suisun 

City General Plan (Exhibit A) and Housing Element (Exhibit B); and   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the record of proceedings shall be located at the 

City Manager’s Office, and that the City Clerk shall be the custodian of such documents. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the following vote at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City duly held on the 15th day of March 2022: 

AYES: Council Members:    

NOES: Council Members:    

ABSENT: Council Members:    

ABSTAIN: Council Members:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022. 

 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

Item 6 
Attachment 1

11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

12



2021 ANNUAL GENERAL PLAN 

 PROGRESS REPORT 

City or County Name: 
City of Suisun City 

Mailing Address: 
701 Civic Center Boulevard 

Suisun City, CA 94585 

Contact Person: 
John Kearns 

Senior Planner 

Phone: 
(707)-421-7335 

Fax: 
(707)-429-3758 

E-mail:
jkearns@suisun.com 

Reporting Period by Calendar Year: 
From January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021 

Submitted to: 

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 

P.O. Box 3044

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

13



INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT 

An Annual Report is required for all General Plans by California Government Code Section 

65400(b), which states “the planning agency shall provide an annual report to the legislative body 

on the status of the plan and progress in its implementation, including the progress in meeting its 

share of regional housing needs….” 

The General Plan represents Suisun City’s future vision of the City in the year 2035. The Plan 

identifies the general location for future land uses, including residential, commercial, and industrial 

areas, and desired population and building densities throughout the community. The Plan states 

future goals for Community Character and Design, Land Use, Transportation, Economic 

Development, Housing, Open Space and Conservation, Community Facilities and Services, and 

Public Health and Safety. 

The report describes the City’s progress in implementing the policies and programs of the General 

Plan, as well as the City’s progress on providing its share of the Regional Housing Needs 

Allocation. The report is divided into topic areas based on the City’s General Plan Elements. 

This is the 7th Annual Report prepared by the Development Services Department since the adoption 

of the 2035 General Plan in 2015. For further information or additional copies of the Report, please 

contact: 

John Kearns, Senior Planner 

City of Suisun City 

Development Services Department 

701 Civic Center Blvd. 

Suisun City, CA 94585 

707-421-7335

jkearns@suisun.com 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

14

mailto:jkearns@suisun.com


Below is a brief description of projects that the City has begun or completed during CY 2021 that 

assisted in implementing both the 2035 General Plan and 2015-2023 Housing Element: 

Community Character and Design Element 

Continued Implementation of Suisun City Strategic Plan. The Suisun City Council adopted the 

2020-2025 Strategic Plan on October 22, 2019. Each City Council agenda item now ties back to 

how it relates to the adopted strategic plan. 

Continued Holding Committee Meetings for Specific Issues. In 2019, the City Council created 

three committees to address important issues in the City: Lighting and Landscaping Districts, 

Public Safety, and Environment and Climate. These committees are made up of city residents 

appointed by the City Council. 

Continued Implementation of Revised Public Notification Requirements and Adoption of 

Good Neighbor Policy. The City updated its public noticing requirements and procedures in 2019. 

Noticing for development projects now includes mailings sent to all property owners within 600 

feet of a project and placing a sign visible on the site displaying project information. Full use of 

the City’s social media and website has been implemented in order to get the word out. In 2021, 

the City Council adopted a “Good Neighbor” Policy which allows residents and interested parities 

to be better informed early in the development review process. 

Land Use Element 

Initiated Amendments to Title 18 “Zoning”. Staff initiated work with the City’s consultant, 

Gary Price, to amend/update the zoning code to address various inconsistencies and ambiguities. 

Initiated Amendments to the Waterfront District Specific Plan. As a part of the City of Suisun 

City’s Senate Bill 2 grant, AECOM Technical Service Inc. has been contracted to update and 

amend the Waterfront District Specific Plan. Amendments include a closer analysis of allowable 

uses, parking requirements throughout the Plan, and specific analysis of various sites within the 

Plan. 

Transportation 

Initiated Amendments to Transportation Element of the General Plan to Improve 

Circulation in and Around the City. Staff continued analysis of the realignment of Railroad 

Avenue as well as other possible long-term circulation improvements for the City to consider. 

Construction completed for Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB) Project, HSIP 

Cycle 9. This project installed Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB) and other crossing 

improvements at the following three locations: 

1) Existing mid-block crossing on Merganser Drive fronting the Senior Center.

2) Pintail Drive at Scoter Way, fronting the Suisun City library and the Suisun Elementary

School.

3) New crossing on Lawler Ranch Parkway between Fennie Way and Hillborn Way

(proposed new pedestrian crossing will be at walkway to Falls Park).

Project scope included, but was not limited to the following: 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

15



• Locations #1 and #2:  Replaced the existing in-roadway lighted crosswalk systems with

rectangular rapid flashing beacons; replace the crosswalk with a high visibility crosswalk;

and installed pavement markings and roadway signs.

• Location #3:  Installed high visibility crosswalk, rectangular rapid flashing beacons,

concrete curb extension (aka bulbout), pavement markings and striping, roadway signs,

and curb ramps as well as removed a tree and replace sidewalk damaged by root intrusion

from said tree.

Design Completed for McCoy Creek Bicycle Trail Phase II Improvements. The project will 

be an extension of McCoy Creek Trail – Phase 1.  Phase I was completed in 2008 and resulted in 

the addition of .38 miles (2,000 feet) in Class I trail to the City’s existing trail system.  The Phase 

2 Project would extend the existing Phase 1 Trail along the west bank of the McCoy Creek canal, 

starting from the north side of Pintail Drive and ending at Blossom Avenue. It will include a 

pedestrian bridge across Laurel Creek.  The bridge will span from the south bank of the Laurel 

Creek canal to the north bank of the Laurel Creek canal (roughly ending at the dead-end of 

Humphrey Drive). This is the most expensive portion of the Project as the bridge will span from 

one side of the creek to the other.  The Trail will then continue along the north bank of the Laurel 

Creek canal to Blossom Avenue. The Project will be approximately one (1) mile in length.  This 

Project will add a natural, scenic paved trail through the center of town that allows for easy 

connection to the Kroc Center, Suisun City Library, Suisun Elementary, transportation, shopping, 

and the Central County Bikeway.  The last planned phase of this Project (Phase 3) would complete 

the Trail eastward from Blossom Avenue to the bend in Laurel Creek canal where it turns 

northward (just east of Sunset Avenue) and will dead-end at Old Railroad Avenue.  This would 

allow easy access into the City of Fairfield from the Trail.  Construction will begin in 2022 and is 

anticipated to be completed by the end of 2023. 

Design completed for Village Drive and Whispering Bay Lane Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal 

(Senate Bill 1), Traffic Calming Improvements on Whispering Bay Lane, and New Railroad 

Avenue Pavement Resurfacing Projects.  

Village Drive and Whispering Bay Lane Asphalt Rubber Cape Seal Project (Senate Bill 1) 

This project will provide asphalt rubber cape seal treatment, including digout repairs, on the 

following street segments:   

1) Village Drive from Highway 12 to Railroad Avenue.

2) Whispering Bay Lane from Francisco Drive to Josiah Circle.

As part of this project, Village Drive will receive a road diet, including the introduction of new 

buffered bicycle lanes on each side of the roadway, resulting in the reduction of vehicle travel 

widths.  The new buffered bicycle lane will directly connect to the Central County Bikeway, and 

will create a safe facility for students who chose to ride their bikes to and from Crystal Middle 

School. Construction will begin and will be completed in 2022. 

Traffic Calming Improvements on Whispering Bay Lane 

This project will provide improvements at the existing crosswalk fronting Crystal Middle School, 

on Whispering Bay Lane and just south of Almond Street. The project will include installing 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

16



RRFBs, high visibility crosswalk, a concrete curb extension and curb ramp upgrades.  Construction 

will begin and will be completed in 2022. 

New Railroad Avenue Pavement Resurfacing Project 

This project will provide a pavement overlay on the eastbound lanes on New Railroad Avenue.  

Pavement overlay will be from Village Drive to Sunset Avenue, on the south side of New Railroad 

Avenue.  Also, dig out repairs will be performed on the south side of New Railroad Avenue from 

Village Drive to Birchwood Court. This roadway is experiencing significant alligator cracks and 

base failure.  This Project will repair the roadway, including the base failure, and would upgrade 

curb ramps to ADA compliance.   

The project will also replace the existing bicycle lanes with buffered bicycle lanes, resulting in the 

width reduction to the travel lanes.  This striping improvement will be on both sides of New 

Railroad Avenue from Sunset Avenue to Marina Boulevard. 

Construction will begin and will be completed in 2022. 

Secured grant funding for HSIP Cycle 10 Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB), 

(HSIP) Cycle 10 Traffic Signal Improvements, Highway 12 Shoulder and Median 

Improvements Projects. 

HSIP Cycle 10 Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB) Project 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle10 in the amount of $249,800 has been 

secured for this project.  No local match is required.  The project will install rectangular rapid 

flashing beacons, high visibility crosswalks and concrete bulbouts at the following locations:   

1) Golden Eye Way at Shoveller Drive (fronting Suisun Elementary School.

2) Pintail Drive at Crane Drive (fronting Goepp Park and Dan O. Root Elementary School).

3) Harrier Drive, north of Osprey Way (fronting the main entrance to Dan O. Root Elementary

School).

These are locations identified for Safe Routes to School (SR2S) improvements through the SR2S 

Task Force Committee, which is comprised of representatives from the Fairfield-Suisun Unified 

School District (FUSD), Solano Transportation Authority (STA), and the City.  Design work will 

begin and will be completed by the end of 2022.  Construction is anticipated to begin in 2022 and 

to be completed 2023. 

(HSIP) Cycle 10 Traffic Signal Improvements Project 

Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle10 in the amount of $1,515,330 has been 

secured for this project.  A 10% local match ($168,370) is required.  The project will upgrade the 

existing five (5) traffic signals on Sunset Avenue, the five (5) traffic signals on Walters Road, and 

the one traffic signal at Main Street and Lotz Way.  Among the possible improvements are 

upgrades to the hardware and controller, as well as replacement of the median island curbs, 

installation of median island fencing, and minor landscaping.  Design will begin in 2022 and will 

be completed early 2023.  Construction is anticipated to begin and to be completed in 2023. 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

17



Highway 12 Shoulder and Median Improvements Project 

The City has secured Clean California grant funds in the amount of $2,300,000 for this project, 

which will beautify Highway 12 from Civic Center Boulevard to Walters Road at the following 

locations:  

1) The unpaved area located between the eastbound off-ramp and on-ramp at Civic

Boulevard.

2) The medians and the unpaved areas between the curbs and the 4-foot tall fences from

Marina Boulevard to Walters Road.

Among the improvements that will be considered are minor landscaping, fence replacement, and 

surface material upgrades to eliminate or reduce weed growth.  Design and construction is 

anticipated to begin and to be completed in 2022. 

Economic Development 

Entitled and Provided Final Inspection for Stiiizy Cannabis Dispensary at 521 Railroad 

Avenue. The City Council entitled the City’s first cannabis dispensary in January 2021. Work then 

began on tenant improvements to the existing building at 521 Railroad Avenue. The business has 

approval for Type 10 “Retail” and Type 11 “Distribution” licenses. The facility opened in Summer 

2021. 

Issued Building Permits for Lawler Plaza and Residences Project. The project is located at the 

southeast corner of Anderson Drive and Lawler Center Drive. It received its building permits in 

July 2021 and held a groundbreaking event in August 2021. The project consists of 75 multi-family 

residential units and 7,200 square feet of retail space. 

Continued Processing Suisun Logistics (Eastern Sphere of Influence) and Highway 12 

Logistics (Western Sphere of Influence) Development Projects. 

Suisun Logistics 

The City received a development application and annexation request for 167 acres within the City’s 

Eastern Sphere of Influence. The project, as proposed, would include over 2 million square feet of 

High-Cube Industrial space. Entitlements are anticipated to be considered by the end of the calendar 

year. 

Highway 12 Logistics 

The City received a development application and annexation request for property west of the Suisun 

City downtown, adjacent to Pennsylvania Avenue and south of Highway 12 within the City’s 

Western Sphere of Influence. The project, as proposed, would include approximately 1.28 million 

square feet of High-Cube Industrial space. Entitlements are anticipated to be considered in late 

2022/early 2023. 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

18



Sold Over 19 acres of Former Successor Agency and Housing Authority Property for Private 

Development. The City sold several parcels which were largely in the ownership of the Successor 

Agency and Housing Authority, for private development. Some of the parcels sold already have 

development applications submitted and are being processed. 

Issued Certificate of Occupancy for 7-Eleven Development Project on Walters Road. The 7-

Eleven convenience market/gas station (entitled December 2019) was issued a certificate of 

occupancy and began operation in 2021. 

Housing Element 

Entitled Marina Village Affordable Housing Project (160 units). The Planning Commission 

entitled the 160-unit affordable housing project in December 2021. The project is located at the 

southeast corner of Marina Boulevard and Buena Vista Avenue. 

Entitled Blossom Apartments Projects (180 Units). The Planning Commission entitled the 180-

unit market rate housing project in June 2021. The project is located at the southeast corner of 

Railroad Avenue and Blossom Avenue. 

Permitting of Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU’s). The City issued four Accessory Dwelling 

Units (ADU’s) in the 2021 calendar year and are looking at ways to continue to streamline their 

permitting moving forward. 

In Cooperation with Other Jurisdictions in Solano County, Formed a Collaborative in 

Updating the Housing Element (6th Cycle). Along with the cities of Benicia, Dixon, Rio Vista, 

Vacaville, Vallejo, and Solano County, the City of Suisun City formed a collaborative in updating 

the upcoming Housing Element of the General Plan. Consulting work (performed by PlaceWorks) 

began in late 2021 with a certification deadline of January 2021. 

Open Space and Conservation 

Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP). The City of Suisun City continues to be a participant of the 

HCP.  

Community Facilities and Services 

Completed Energy Efficiency Upgrades to City-Owned Facilities. 

Adopted a Public Art Ordinance. The City adopted a Public Art Ordinance which obligates 

development to either pay a fee or install public art as part of a project. The Ordinance was further 

amended in late 2021. 

Initiated Work on the Prosperity Farm Community Garden Project. The area being 

considered for the new Community Garden is City owned property that was once part of a plan to 

become a street.  That idea never came to fruition and the land has been vacant ever since.  

Ironically, the name of the street that was never built was Prosperity Lane, which leads to naming 

this project Prosperity Farm.  This property sits adjacent to the McCoy Creek Bike Trail Phase 3, 

which will connect this area to the majority of the city by walking or riding a bicycle.  The 

Community Garden will be planned comprehensively and designed by a landscape architect to 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

19



help bring concepts to reality and to insure we have a first class product the community can be 

proud of at completion.   

Public Health and Safety 

Flood control projects (Annual).  Staff completed routine removal of vegetation to ensure proper 

functioning and operation of channel runoff, existing water control facilities, or other structures 

necessary for public health, safety and benefit.  The following activities took place in 2020: 

spraying, mowing/weed eating, debris removal, and limb pruning. 

Increase of Public Safety Personnel in the Budget. The City focused on increasing public safety 

personnel in calendar year 2021 including personnel in both the Police and Fire Departments. 

Received City Council Authorization for Equipment Upgrades. Various equipment upgrades 

in various departments were authorized including new vehicles. 

Worked Closely on the Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. Staff worked closely 

with the County and other participants of the Plan to complete the update. This is being completed 

in advance of the update to the Safety Element of the General Plan. 

General Plan Safety Element. In addition to the update of the Housing Element that PlaceWorks 

is completing, they are also updating the Safety Element. The amendment are largely centered 

around update dictated by new laws/statutes. 

Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit A

20



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

21



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

22



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

23



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

24



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

25



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

26



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

27



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

28



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

29



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

30



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

31



Item 6 
Attachment 1 - Exhibit B

32



A
nn

ua
l P

ro
gr

es
s 

Re
po

rt
 2

02
1

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t –
Pl

an
ni

ng
 

D
iv

is
io

n

Su
is

un
 C

ity
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 

Item 6 
Attachment 2

33

http://www.suisun.com/


W
hy

 d
o 

w
e 

do
 th

is 
ev

er
y 

ye
ar

?


G

ov
er

nm
en

t C
od

e 
se

ct
io

n 
65

40
0 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
at

 
ea

ch
 c

ity
, c

ou
nt

y,
 o

r c
ity

 a
nd

 c
ou

nt
y,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ch

ar
te

r c
iti

es
, p

re
pa

re
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
re

po
rt

 
(A

PR
) o

n 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f t

he
 h

ou
si

ng
 e

le
m

en
t o

f i
ts

 
ge

ne
ra

l p
la

n 
an

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 it
s 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n,
 

us
in

g 
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

de
fin

iti
on

s 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t (
H

CD
) 


Ea

ch
 ju

ris
di

ct
io

n’
s A

nn
ua

l P
ro

gr
es

s 
Re

po
rt

 (A
PR

) 
m

us
t b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 H
CD

 a
nd

 th
e 

G
ov

er
no

r’s
 

O
ff

ic
e 

of
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Re
se

ar
ch

 (O
PR

) b
y

A
pr

il 
1

of
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 (c
ov

er
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 c

al
en

da
r 

ye
ar

)

Item 6 
Attachment 2

34

http://www.suisun.com/


H
ig

hl
ig

ht
s


A

do
pt

io
n 

of
 G

oo
d 

N
ei

gh
bo

r P
ol

ic
y


Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
Co

m
pl

et
ed

 fo
r R

ec
ta

ng
ul

ar
 R

ap
id

 
Fl

as
hi

ng
 B

ea
co

ns
 (R

RF
B)

 P
ro

je
ct

, H
SI

P 
Cy

cl
e 

9


En

tit
le

d 
St

iii
zy

Ca
nn

ab
is

 D
is

pe
ns

ar
y 

(5
21

 
Ra

ilr
oa

d 
A

ve
nu

e)


Sa

le
 o

f S
uc

ce
ss

or
 A

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

Pr
op

e r
ty

 to
 P

riv
at

e 
D

ev
el

op
er

s


A

do
pt

ed
 a

 P
ub

lic
 A

rt
 O

rd
in

an
ce


En

tit
le

d 
Bl

os
so

m
 a

nd
 M

ar
in

a 
V

ill
ag

e 
A

pa
rt

m
en

t 
Pr

oj
ec

ts

20
21

Item 6 
Attachment 2

35

http://www.suisun.com/


THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

36



PREPARED BY: Kris Lofthus, Recreation, Parks, and Marina Director 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving a 

Priority List of Community Events for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23

FISCAL IMPACT:  The overall total is estimated to be $122,600.  With anticipated sponsorships 

totaling $7,000, fireworks sales of $87,000, and $12,500 anticipated revenue.  Estimated total cost 

to the City’s general fund would be approximately $16,100. 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance 

BACKGROUND:  Due to the loss of the Redevelopment Agency, which provided funding for 

special events, the Suisun City Community Services Foundation (Foundation) was established in 

2012 to generate funds to financially support community events in Suisun City.  The Foundation 

disbanded in 2016 and were no longer raising funds for community events.  The City utilizes funds 

generated by fireworks sales, event booth rentals, sponsorships, and amusement ride revenues to 

fund community events. 

STAFF REPORT:  Special events are essential productions that bring neighbors together and build 

a sense of place and community.  By providing these opportunities, residents have a gathering place 

in which they can celebrate a national holiday, recreate together, and build positive community 

relationships.  Special events also act as an economic driver for those businesses located within close 

proximity of the events.     

Exhibit A outlines the recommended events for 2022-23, and proposed budget.  This list includes 

the return of the 4th of July Celebration and Sunday Jazz Series.  The summer program begins on 

Saturday, June 24 with a Movie in the Park funded in the 2021-2022 fiscal year.  It is anticipated 

that Sunday Jazz will be funded by a sponsorship, as it has been in the past, in the amount of $7,000. 

It is estimated that community events will collect approximately $12,500 in revenue from vendor 

booth fees and amusement ride revenue.  

All proposed events will follow CDC, state, and county guidelines for COVID-19. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 

2022-___:  Approving a Priority List of Events for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23.  

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving a Priority List of Events for Fiscal Year 2022-2023

2. Exhibit A: Community Events Calendar for FY 2022-23

3. Exhibit B: Community Events Budgets for FY 2022-23

Item 7

37



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

38



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

APPROVING A PRIORITY LIST OF EVENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022-23 

WHEREAS, traditionally the City Council annually adopted a seasonal events 

calendar to be funded through Redevelopment; and 

WHEREAS, with the loss of the Redevelopment Agency, the Suisun City 

Community Services Foundation (Foundation) was established in 2012 to generate funding 

for these community events; and  

WHEREAS, in 2016 the Foundation no longer financially supported City of Suisun 

City Special Events; and 

WHEREAS, it is recognized that community events provide gathering places that 

strengthens a city; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has an interest in supporting community events; and 

WHEREAS, community events contribute to the economy of our business 

community by bringing people to Suisun City; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City hereby approves a priority list of events for fiscal year (FY) 2022-23. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City held on Tuesday the 15th day of March 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers: 

NOES: Councilmembers: 

ABSENT: Councilmembers: 

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers: 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022. 

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

Item 7 
Attachment 1

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

40



Friday, June 24, 2022 Movie in the Park (FY) 2021-2022
Friday, July 1, 2022 Movie in the Park
Monday, July 4, 2022 4th of July
Friday, July 8, 2022 Movie in the Park
Sunday, July 10, 2022 Sunday Jazz
Friday, July 15, 2022 Movie in the Park
Sunday, July 17, 2022 Sunday Jazz
Friday, July 22, 2022 Movie in the Park
Saturday, July 23, 2022 Music on the Waterfront
Sunday, July 24, 2022 Sunday Jazz
Friday, July 29, 2022 Movie in the Park
Saturday, July 30, 2022 Music on the Waterfront
Sunday, July 31, 2022 Sunday Jazz
Saturday, August 6, 2022 Music on the Waterfront
Sunday, August 7, 2022 Sunday Jazz
Sunday, August 21, 2022 Sunday Jazz
Saturday, August 13, 2022 Music on the Waterfront
Saturday, August 27, 2022 Music on the Waterfront
Saturday, October 1, 2022 Boat-in Movie Night
Friday, October 7, 2022 Cruisin' Suisun Car Cruise
Saturday, October 8, 2022 Celebrate Suisun/Cruisin' Suisun Car Show
Monday, October 31, 2022 Drive Thru Trick or Treat
Saturday, December 3, 2022 Christmas on the Waterfront
Thursday, December 22, 2022 Menorah Lighting
Monday, Devember 26, 2022 Kwanza
Brew Bash, TBA Brew Bash
Saturday, April 15, 2023 Mobile Easter Egg Hunt
Friday, June 23, 2023 Movie in the Park
Friday, June 30, 2023 Movie in the Park

Exhibit A
Community Events Calendar for FY 2022-2023

Item 7 
Attachment 2 

41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

42



Exhibit 2

Date Special Events Expenditures Revenue

Every Fri

6/24‐7/29 & Friday Night Movie in the Park Series(8)
6/23 & 6/30/23 Staff 1,000$           

Movies 4,000$           
Field Supplies 500$              
Marketing 500$              

Friday Night Movies in the Park Total 6,000$           ‐$                        

7/4/22 4th of July Celebration
Staff 3,000$           
OT - PW and PD 7,000$           
Entertainment 3,600$           
Sound 2,900$           
Fireworks 16,000$         
Security 1,500$           
Restrooms 2,800$           
Field Supplies 2,500$           
Marketing 1,200$           
Rentals 4,400$           
Permits 800$              

4th of July Total 45,700$         Rent 4,000$               

7/23‐8/27 Saturday Night Music on the Waterfront Series (5)
Staff 1,500$           
Bands 6,000$           
Permits 800$              
ASCAP Misic License 1,500$           
Sound 4,500$           
Field Supplies 500$              
Marketing 1,000$           
Restrooms 1,000$           

Saturday Night Music on the Waterfront Total 16,800$         

Rent 1,500$               

Sun

7/10‐8/21 Sunday Jazz Series (6) 
Staff 1,000$           
Marketing 500$              
Bands 4,600$           
Restrooms 1,000$           

Sunday Jazz Total 7,100$           

Donation 7,000$               

10/1/2022 Boat in Movie
Staff 200$              
Marketing 500$              
Movie License 500$              

Boat in Movie 1,200$           

-$                   

SPECIAL EVENT BUDGETS FOR FY 2022-23

Item 7 
Attachment 3

43



10/8/2022 Celebrate Suisun/Cruisin' Suisun Car Show
Staff 1,500$           
Marketing 500$              
Permits 800$              
Entertainment/Sound 4,500$           
Restrooms 1,500$           
Field Supplies 1,500$           

Celebrate Suisun/Cruisin'Suisun Car Show Total 10,300$         

Rent/Entry Fee 4,000$               

10/31/2022 Drive Thru Trick or Treat
Staff 300$              
Marketing 500$              
Field Supplies 1,500$           

Drive Thru Trick or Treat Total 1,500$           

-$                   

12/3/2022 Christmas on the Waterfront
Staffing 1,500$           
OT - PW and PD 3,000$           
Field Supplies, tree decorations 10,000$         
Permits 800$              
Carriage Ride 2,000$           
Sound 1,500$           
Entertainment 3,000$           
Fireworks Show 5,000$           
Restrooms 2,000$           
Marketing 1,200$           

  Christmas on the Waterfront Total 30,000$         

Rent 3,000$               

12/22/2022 Menorah Lighting
Staff 200$              
Marketing 500$              
Field Supplies 500$              

Menorah Lighting Total 700$              

-$                   

12/26/2022 Kwanza

Staff 300$              
Field Supplies 500$              
Marketing 500$              
Kinara 2,500$           

Kwanza Total 3,300$           -$                   

All Events 2022/23 Events Total 122,600$       
Fireworks Sales 87,000$             

Donations 7,000$               
Booth and Concession Sales 12,500$             

General Fund Request 16,100$         

Item 7 
Attachment 3

44



PREPARED BY:   Marvin Mora, Recreation Supervisor 

REVIEWED BY:  Kris Lofthus, Recreation, Parks, & Marina Director  

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Adoption of Council Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to Enter into a Contract on the City’s Behalf with GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. for the 

Development of a Parks and Facilities Master Plan in the amount of $135,525 and authorizing the 

City Manager to approve change orders up to 10% of the original contract amount.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Parks and Facilities Master Plan Project (Project) will have no fiscal 

impact to the General Fund.  The project will be funded through the City’s Park Development 

Fund.   The low bid was $135,525 by GSM Landscape, Inc. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. 

 

BACKGROUND: A parks and facilities master plan serves as a guiding document for an agency 

as it seeks to maintain and improve its facilities and parks. The City is working toward 

implementing improvements to existing facilities that best serve the needs of the community. The 

Master Plan will serve as a usable “blueprint” to the Recreation, Parks, Marina, and Arts 

Commission (RPMA), City Council, consultants, and the Recreation, Parks, and Marina 

Department (RPM) for the future growth and maintenance of the RPM parks, facilities, and 

services. The Master Plan will be a strategic tool used to guide decision making pertaining to the 

reconditioning, development of new, and proof of need of parks, facilities, and recreation 

programming. With anticipated additional revenues, this plan will prioritize the needs of the park 

system and recreation amenities that will enhance programming opportunities for the RPM 

Department.  It analyzes community needs, current facilities, and parks, and it creates a blueprint 

for the Recreation, Parks, and Marina (RPM) Department to strive for at least the next 10-15 years. 

To this point, Suisun City has never had one developed. As more housing projects come to Suisun 

City and the balance of the Park Development fund grows, the necessity for a parks and facilities 

master plan grows exponentially.   

 

RPM is also working towards national accreditation through the National Parks and Recreation 

Association.  NRPA's Commission for Accreditation of Park and Recreation Agencies (CAPRA) 

provides quality assurance and quality improvement of accredited park and recreation agencies 

throughout the United States by providing agencies with a management system of best practices. 

CAPRA is the only national accreditation of park and recreation agencies and is a valuable 

measure of an agency’s overall quality of operation, management, and service to the community. 

Achieving CAPRA accreditation is the best way to demonstrate that your agency and your staff 

provide your community with the highest level of service. To date there are 192 agencies in the 

United States and less than 5 in California that have achieved this distinction.  As part of this 

process, they require a complete and updated park and facilities master plan on file as this is a best 

practice for recreation and park agencies. 

 

Item 8

45



 
 

Over the past two years the RPM Department worked to create a Park and Facilities Master Plan, 

but due to limited staff resources and other primary obligations, the departments progress has been 

minimal.  In order to complete the Master Plan, the services of an outside consultant is 

recommended.   

 

STAFF REPORT:  The requirements for the selected firm are: 

 

Requirement I: Community Engagement  

Describe your implementation process to provide a comprehensive strategy and methodology for 

citizen involvement. Assure the residents, user groups, non-user groups, associations, and other 

stakeholders are provided an opportunity to participate in the development of this Master Plan.  

 a.  Conduct at least One (1) public community meeting in person or via ZOOM.  

b. Conduct a minimum of five (5) individual stakeholder (to be selected by the City) 

interviews. These should include two (2) City Council Members, two (2) RPMA 

Commission Members, and two (1) Public Works Staff. 

 c. Conduct interviews with two (2) RPM Management Staff. 

d. Complete refined community survey associated with the survey utilized by the City in 

2021.  

e. Provide via one (1) social media platform an ongoing social media site for residents to 

provide information and opinions.  

 

Requirement II: Needs Assessment  

Prepare a comparative analysis comparing current park and facility offerings to agencies of like 

size in the surrounding area. Areas of emphasis include park amenities, facilities, staffing, and 

operational budget. This information should be compiled to identify successes, gaps, and 

opportunities within the RPM Department.  

 

Requirement III: Inventory of Parks and Facilities  

The RPMA Commission Ad Hoc has compiled a comprehensive inventory of all City Parks and 

Recreation facilities. Confirm the location and size of existing parks and facilities. An analysis will 

need to be completed and shall consider the capacity of each amenity found (playgrounds, ball 

fields, trails, natural areas, special facilities, etc.), as well as functionality, accessibility, condition, 

comfort and convenience. List each location’s amenities, its current condition, estimated age, and 

provide a replacement schedule with estimated costs. Provide a qualitative evaluation of amenities 

per park report (i.e., equal balance of amenities in each park) and develop a set of prioritized 

recommendations for improvements needed within existing parks, open space, buildings, signage, 

and other recreational facilities.  

 

Requirement IV: Identification of Growth Opportunities of New Parks and Facilities  

Evaluate potential need and provide recommendations and options regarding suitable sites for 

future park and recreation facilities, including, but not limited to, splash pad, gymnasium, 

neighborhood center, walkability / trails, and sports fields, specifically soccer fields. Identify and 

develop a set of prioritized recommendations for additional parks, open space, buildings and other 

recreation facilities that may be needed in the City of Suisun City. Address size, location, layout, 

uses, use of standard amenities, and constraints to provide both guidance and flexibility for future 

development and identify and develop a set of prioritized recommendations for additional parks, 

open space, facilities, and other recreation facilities that may be needed by RPM.  

Item 8

46



 
 

 

Requirement V: Action Plan  

Develop a prioritized plan of action which will include identified issues and challenges; strategies; 

probable costs, including staffing, facility and maintenance needs; and an analysis of potential 

funding sources and mechanisms for the parks, open space, buildings and other recreation 

facilities. Action plan should include attainable goals along with measurable timelines, policies and 

standards to support the Master Plan.  Plan shall also include:  

• Upgrading/consolidating existing recreation facilities and programs.  

• Identify potential upgrades and enhancements to current parks and related cost estimates 

for those improvements.  

• Identifying potential locations for future recreation facilities and programs, open spaces and 

trails.  

• Proper operational staffing levels.  

• Establishing land acquisition strategies. 

 

The RFP for the project was posted on January 10, 2022.  Bids were opened on February 7, 2022, 

at 2:00 PM, at which time three (3) bids were received.  Staff has received the low bidder’s 

proposal and accompanying documents.  Staff has determined that the bid submitted by GSM 

Landscape Architects, Inc. is the lowest responsive bid.   

 

The three bids received for the Project are as follows: 

 Company         TOTAL  

 GSM Landscape Architects, Inc.      $135,525.00 

 RHAA Landscape Architecture & Planning     $154,516.00 

 Gates + Associates        $184,790.00 

  

Given the current balance of $672,943 (as of 2/22/22) in the City’s Park Development Fund, and 

anticipated revenues of an estimated $4 million into the fund due to incoming housing projects in 

the next 12-36 months, there are sufficient monies available. 

 

The City’s Recreation, Parks, Marina, and Arts Commission unanimously recommended awarding 

the Project contract to GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. at its February 16, 2022, meeting.      

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-

___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Contract on the City’s Behalf with GSM 

Landscape Architects, Inc. for the Development of a Parks and Facilities Master Plan in the 

amount of $135,525 and authorizing the City Manager to approve change orders up to 10% of the 

original contract amount. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-__: Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Contract on the 

City’s Behalf with GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. for the Development of a Parks and 

Facilities Master Plan in the amount of $135,525 and authorizing the City Manager to 

approve change orders up to 10% of the original contract amount. 

Item 8

47



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

48



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT ON THE 

CITY’S BEHALF WITH GSM LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, INC. FOR THE 

DEVELOPMENT OF A PARKS AND FACILITIES MASTER PLAN IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $135,525 AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROVE 

CHANGE ORDERS UP TO 10% OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT  

 

 WHEREAS, the city is working towards implementing improvements to existing 

facilities that best serve the needs of the community; and 

 WHEREAS, a parks and facilities master plan serves as a guiding document for an 

agency to maintain and improve its facilities and parks for the next 10-15 years; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has never had a parks and facilities master plan developed;  and 

 WHEREAS, the city wishes to become an accredited agency with the National 

Recreation Park Association; and 

 WHEREAS, the RFP for Project was posted on January 10, 2022, closed on February 

7, 2022, and three bids were received; and 

 WHEREAS, GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. provided the lowest responsive bid of 

$135,525.00; and 

 WHEREAS, the Recreation, Parks, Marina, and Arts Commission recommended 

awarding the Project contract to GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. at its February 16, 2022 

meeting; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City authorizes the City Manager to Enter into a Contract on the City’s Behalf with GSM 

Landscape Architects, Inc. for the Development of a Parks and Facilities Master Plan in the 

amount of $135,525.00 and authorizing the City Manager to approve change orders up to 10% 

of the original contract amount and to take any and all necessary and appropriate actions to 

implement this contract. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of March 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022.  

 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

Item 8 
Attachment 1

49



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

50



PREPARED BY:   Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer  

REVIEWED BY:  Nouae Vue, Public Works Director 

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022  

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:   Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-__:  Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order on the City’s Behalf with Lamassu Utility Services, 

Inc. for the Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project in the amount of 

$231,169.33 for a total contract of $312,905.46 and Authorize up to $63,000 for Contingencies. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project 

(Project) will be paid under American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund.  On February 1, 2022, the 

City Council approved the ARPA mid-year budget review adjustments, which included allocation 

of $250,000 to this Project (See Attachment No. 4, ARPA Funding Appropriations). The Project 

will also be budgeted under Fund 190, Storm Drain & Flood Maintenance, in the amount of 

$125,905.46, in fiscal year 2021-2022.  The Project does not have any fiscal impact on the General 

Fund. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. 

 

BACKGROUND:  On March 27, 2019, the Public Works crew discovered a hole in the landscape 

strip on the south side of Highway 12 between the edge of pavement and the Caltrans wood fence. 

This is the segment of Highway 12 between Marina Boulevard and Village Drive.  Upon closer 

inspection, it was determined that the City’s underground storm drain pipe, which is of corrugated 

metal pipe, had rusted and developed a hole, resulting in an underground void approximately 5 feet 

by 10 feet in size and approximately 10 feet deep.  The void extended from the landscape strip to a 

portion of the paved shoulder. 

 

At this location, three storm drain pipes, located side by side, cross under Highway 12.  The flow 

in each of the storm drain pipes are controlled by three (3) pumps located between the Highway 12 

soundwall and Chipman Lane.  The pipes drain stormwater from the neighborhoods to the north, 

bounded in general by Highway 12, Sunset Avenue, Railroad Avenue and Mosswood Drive (and 

extended) and discharge to the open channel running along the Grizzly Island Trail. 

 

To make the necessary emergency repair, City staff secured four (4) bids, and the emergency repair 

contract was awarded to the lowest bidder in the amount of $69,500.  The repair was completed the 

following week after the storm drain pipe damage was discovered.   

 

During the repair, the existing pipes were also assessed and were determined to be in need of 

rehabilitation work to prevent similar failures in the future.  Since the pipes cross under Highway 

12, any excavation involved in the work would significantly impact traffic on Highway 12 and/or 

would need to be performed at night.  In any case, excavation work exposing the pipes would be 

cost prohibitive.  A feasible solution in this situation would be to rehabilitate the storm drain pipes 

through a trenchless method, such as Cured-In-Place Pipe (CIPP) lining.  Without rehabilitation, 

the storm drain pipes could present a significant potential liability for the City. 

Item 9

51



 
 

 

STAFF REPORT:  In 2020, the City went out to bid for the recommended CIPP lining to one of 

the three storm drain pipes, as well as to perform video inspections and cleaning of all three pipes, 

including removal of any tree roots within the pipes.  The City did not have enough funds to line 

the other two pipes, which were considered for lining at future dates. Lamassu Utility Services 

submitted the lowest responsive bid to line one of the three storm drain pipes for the Highway 12 

Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project, and was awarded the construction contract 

($81,736.13). 

 

During videotaping, the Lamassu discovered that there was a dip in each of the pipe segments. 

This is an unforeseen condition as the record drawings in Public Works Department’s files showed 

a constant slope, without a dip, in each of the pipes. Because the discovery of the dip was made at 

the time the rain season was fast approaching, the storm drain pump controlling flow to the pipe 

was re-installed.  This resulted in a temporary stoppage to the Project.  The plan was to resume 

construction in 2021.  However, the work was not resumed that year as the Measure S funding for 

the Project was re-allocated to other important City projects and the Storm Drain & Flood 

Maintenance funds for the Project was not enough to cover the contract amount. 

 

On February 1, 2022, the City Council approved the ARPA mid-year budget review adjustments, 

which included allocation of $250,000 ARPA funds to enable construction to resume on this 

Project.  Due to the presence of the dip, the Contractor will need to utilize equipment and a method 

involving hot water instead of hot air to “cook” the liner material. Additional cost is associated 

with utilizing the necessary special equipment and method.  City staff has negotiated with Lamassu 

a contract amendment of $231,169.33 to line not just one but two of the three storm drainpipes, 

resulting in a total contract amount of $312,905.46 (See Attachment No. 3, draft Contract Change 

Order No. 1).   

 

For all the work completed to date, including mobilizing/de-mobilizing, traffic control, exploratory 

work in discovering the pipe dips, pipe cleaning and videotaping, the Contractor has been paid 

$23,797.26 of the original contract of $81,736.13.  Given that the new construction budget is 

enough to cover the remaining original construction contract amount ($57,938.87) and the 

negotiated contract change order amount ($231,169.33) for this Project, staff recommends the 

approval of the contract change order and authorize the City Manager up to $63,000 for 

contingencies.  This results in a new contract amount of $312,905.46 plus $63,000 in contingency 

to be covered under ARPA ($250,000) and the Storm Drain Flood Maintenance account.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-

___:  Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract Change Order on the City’s Behalf with 

Lamassu Utility Services, Inc. for the Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection 

Project in the amount of $231,169.33 for a total contract of $312,905.46 and Authorize up to 

$63,000 for Contingencies.  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-__: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract Change 

Order on the City’s Behalf with Lamassu Utility Services, Inc. for the Highway 12 Storm 

Item 9

52



 
 

Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project in the amount of $231,169.33 for a total 

contract of $312,905.46 and Authorize up to $63,000 for Contingencies. 

2. Project Location Map. 

3. Draft Contract Change Order No. 1. 

4. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funding Appropriations. 

Item 9

53



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

54



 

Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 1 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONRACT CHANGE 

ORDER  ON THE CITY’S BEHALF WITH LAMASSU UTILITY SERVICES, INC. 

FOR THE HIGHWAY 12 STORM DRAIN PIPE LINING AND CCTV INSPECTION 

PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $231,169.33 FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT OF 

$312,905.46 AND AUTHORIZE UP TO AN ADDITIONAL $63,000 FOR 

CONTINGENCIES 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 2019, one of the three storm drainpipes that cross under 

Highway 12 was discovered with a rusted hole, resulting in an underground void; and 

 WHEREAS, the three storm drainpipes are side by side and cross under Highway 12 

between Marina Boulevard and Village Drive; and 

 WHEREAS, the necessary emergency repair was promptly performed by a contractor; 

and 

 WHEREAS, in order to prevent another costly emergency repair to the storm drainpipes, 

it is recommended that each of the three pipes be rehabilitated; and 

 WHEREAS, the most cost effective method is a trenchless method involving Cured-In-

Place Pipe (CIPP) lining; and 

 WHEREAS, in 2020, the City contracted with Lamassu Utility Services, Inc. 

(Contractor) for the Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project 

(Project) to line of the three storm drainpipes; and  

 WHEREAS, during videotaping, the Contractor had discovered a dip in the pipe 

segment to be lined and was not able to complete the Project in 2020 before the start of the rain 

season; and  

 WHEREAS, in 2021, the Measure S funding for the project was re-allocated to other 

important City projects; and 

 WHEREAS, in February 2022, ARPA funds in the amount of $250,000 were allocated 

to enable the resumption and completion of the Project; and  

 WHEREAS, special equipment and method will be required to complete the Project; 

and  

 WHEREAS, City staff has negotiated with the Contractor a contract amendment of 

$231,169.33 for the additional cost associated with utilizing special equipment and method to 

line two of the three storm drainpipes. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract amendment on behalf of the City with 

Lamassu Utility Services, Inc. to line two storm drainpipes for the Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe 

Lining and CCTV Inspection Project in the amount of $231,169.33, resulting in a total contract 

amount of $312,905.46. The City Council further authorizes the City Manager to utilize an 

additional $63,000 for contingencies for a possible construction contract up to $375,905.46, paid 

for under ARPA and Fund 190 (Storm Drain & Flood Maintenance).   

Item 9 
Attachment 1

55



 

Resolution No. 2022- 

Adopted  

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Suisun City 

duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of March 2022, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    
 

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of the City of Suisun City this 15th day of March 2022. 

 

  

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

 

Item 9 
Attachment 1

56



L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
P

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 1

2
 S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e 

L
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 C

C
T

V
 I

n
sp

ec
ti

o
n

 P
ro

je
ct

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 

VILLAGE DRIVE 

NADEL DRIVE 

RIO VERDE 

C
H

A
N

N
EL

 F
LO

W
 T

O
 

SU
IS

U
N

 S
LO

U
G

H
 

ST
O

R
M

 D
R

A
IN

 

P
U

M
P

S 
(E

X
IS

TI
N

G
) 

Item 9 
Attachment 2

57

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Attachment No. 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

58



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 Date: March 16, 2022 Page 1 of 1 

PROJECT: Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Project 
TO: Mohammed Adhab CONTRACTOR: Lamassu Utility Services, Inc. 

You are hereby directed to make the herein described changes from the plans and specifications or do the 
following described work. contract.  The work described in this Change Order shall conform to the original Plans 
and Specifications insofar as the same may apply unless otherwise explicitly modified herein.  

NOTE: This change order is not effective until approved by the City Manager. 
CHANGE REQUESTED BY: City of Suisun City 

I. Description of Change Order:
Lamassu Utility Services ,Inc. (Contractor) has previously videotaped the subject north-south
storm drain pipelines and discovered a change in its pipe slope in the vicinity of the soundwall on
the north side of Highway 12.  It was discovered that the storm drain pipelines dip below an east-
west Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (Sewer District) sewer transmission pipeline.  This condition is
different from the improvement plans that were part of the bid package.   This “u-shaped” dip in
the pipe alignment, which is approximately 20-foot in length, requires a different pipe cleaning
process, liner material, and method of curing the material.

This change order is for lining the middle storm drain pipe (original contract) as well as the
abutting storm drain pipe immediately to the east using boiled water (as opposed to hot air).  The
pipe lining will, once again, require the Sewer District to temporarily remove the existing storm
drain pipes  on the north side of Highway 12. The Sewer District will make that temporary removal
only outside the rain season, and they have elected to perform that work sometime in May 2022.
The Contractor shall diligently start work at that time and perform the pipeline cleaning, pre and
post CCTV, and the lining of the two said storm drain pipes, as well as all associated work, to
project completion by the end of July 2022.

II. Changes to Contract Amount & Contract Time

Original Contract $ 81,736.13 Previous Changes Orders $ 0.00 
This Change Order $ 231,169.33 Total Contract to Date $ 312,905.46 

By reason of this change order, the time 
of completion for all work under this 
contract will be adjusted as follows: 

Working Days 

III. Authorization

We, the undersigned contractor, have given careful consideration to the change proposed and hereby
agree, if this proposal is approved, that we will provide all equipment, furnish all materials, except as may 
be otherwise noted above, and perform all services necessary for the work specified above, and will 
accept as full payment therefore the prices shown above. 

Contractor: Date Accepted: 

By:  Mohammed Adhab Title:  Estimator 

City of Suisun City: 
Prepared By: 
Nick Lozano Project Manager Date 

Approval Recommended : 
Nouae Vue Director of Public Works Date 

City Manager Approval: 
Greg Folsom City Manager Date 

Item 9 
Attachment 3

59



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

60



Ba
la

nc
e

Co
m

m
itt

ed
16

7-
76

24
1-

34
67

Am
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

 A
ct

 F
un

d 
Re

ve
nu

e
2,

10
6,

75
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
oc

es
s h

as
 st

ar
te

d
06

9-
81

16
7-

34
69

Re
ve

nu
e 

Lo
ss

 d
ue

 to
 C

O
VI

D-
19

 (R
ec

ov
er

y 
to

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
Re

ve
nu

e)
1,

44
1,

25
4

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
7-

85
06

9-
34

67
of

fs
et

 a
cc

ou
nt

Pr
oc

es
s N

ot
 st

ar
te

d 
(A

va
ila

bl
e)

 A
RP

A 
Fu

nd
 p

ay
m

en
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 Ju

ly
 2

02
1

3,
54

8,
01

0
   

   
   

   
  

Fu
nd

Ac
co

un
t

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Re

ve
nu

e
N

ov
. 8

th
M

id
-Y

ea
r

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
Am

er
ic

an
 R

es
cu

e 
Pl

an
 A

ct
 F

un
d 

(F
un

d 
16

7)
Ci

ty
 H

al
l (

CH
)

16
7-

93
14

0-
19

17
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Ey
e 

W
as

h 
St

at
io

n 
(Ja

ni
to

ria
l n

ee
ds

)
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Ci

ty
 M

an
ag

er
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t (
CM

)
16

7-
85

01
0-

17
27

Ad
m

in
 A

ss
ist

an
t 2

 - 
CM

 o
ffi

ce
 (t

w
o 

ye
ar

s)
47

,5
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
2,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Ci

ty
w

id
e 

(C
W

)
16

7-
90

11
3-

34
67

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 P

re
m

iu
m

 P
ay

 (2
 y

ea
rs

)
48

2,
40

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

55
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

7-
91

30
5-

18
17

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Cu

st
om

 P
R 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 R
ep

or
t

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

91
31

0-
19

17
Co

m
ca

st
 In

te
rn

et
 S

pe
ed

 In
cr

ea
se

 to
 1

GB
 (o

n-
go

in
g)

7,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

93
10

5-
19

17
Gr

an
ic

us
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

fo
r A

ge
nd

a 
Pa

ck
et

s
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

93
10

5-
19

17
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ec

or
d 

Re
qu

es
t S

of
tw

ar
e

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
93

11
1-

19
17

Ph
on

e 
Sy

st
em

 u
pg

ra
de

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
93

13
0-

19
17

IT
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 (S
er

ve
rs

)
10

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
, 0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

93
11

1-
19

17
Co

un
ci

l C
ha

m
be

r/
Co

m
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
Sy

st
em

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

91
14

0-
19

17
Ci

ty
 w

eb
sit

e 
up

gr
ad

e
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

96
44

0-
19

17
ER

P 
Sy

st
em

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
33

5,
80

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

0,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
7-

90
11

0-
19

17
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

 fo
r E

RP
 P

ro
je

ct
 (t

w
o 

ye
ar

s)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

43
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

0,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
7-

91
31

0-
19

17
Pu

bl
ic

 S
pa

ce
 B

ro
ad

ba
nd

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
50

, 0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
93

10
5-

19
17

Ta
bl

et
s f

or
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l M
em

be
rs

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

, 0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s D
ep

ar
tm

en
t (

DS
)

16
7-

90
11

0-
35

07
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s D
ire

ct
or

 (t
w

o 
ye

ar
s)

12
3,

28
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

6,
71

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
7-

93
33

0-
35

07
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t M

ar
ke

tin
g 

(E
PI

C)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

45
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
93

34
0-

35
07

M
at

ch
in

g 
Gr

an
t P

ro
gr

am
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

ou
td

oo
r d

in
in

g 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

(E
PI

C)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

91
30

5-
19

17
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pe

rm
it 

so
ft

w
ar

e 
(t

hr
ee

 y
ea

rs
)

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
96

31
0-

35
07

W
ay

fin
di

ng
/S

ig
na

ge
 (E

PI
C)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Fi
na

nc
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t (

FI
N

)
16

7-
91

30
5-

18
17

Pa
y 

by
 P

ho
ne

 fo
r W

at
er

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

91
30

5-
18

17
Bu

sin
es

s L
ic

en
se

 O
nl

in
e 

Pa
ym

en
t S

ys
te

m
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t (

FD
)

16
7-

96
41

5-
26

27
Lu

ca
s D

ev
ic

es
 (2

 se
ts

)
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

96
41

5-
26

27
AL

S 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
90

11
0-

26
27

St
af

fin
g 

(3
 E

ng
in

ee
rs

) (
tw

o 
ye

ar
s)

16
3,

82
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
49

1,
48

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Po
lic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t (
PD

)
16

7-
90

11
0-

23
57

Tw
o 

Po
lic

e 
O

ffi
ce

r p
os

iti
on

s f
or

 g
un

 v
io

le
nc

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t (
tw

o 
ye

ar
s)

12
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
7-

90
11

0-
23

57
Co

m
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s O
ffi

ce
r (

1 
CS

O
's)

 (t
w

o 
ye

ar
s)

37
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

2,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
7-

93
12

0-
23

57
Ad

di
tio

na
l (

5)
 P

or
ta

bl
e 

Ra
di

os
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

91
30

5-
23

57
AL

PR
 (C

ar
 L

ic
en

se
 P

la
te

 R
ea

de
r)

 S
of

tw
ar

e/
Eq

ui
pm

en
t

38
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

7-
93

11
1-

23
57

Ev
id

en
ce

 A
ir 

Sc
ru

bb
er

 fo
r N

ar
co

tic
s r

oo
m

3,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t (
PW

)
16

7-
96

31
0-

60
17

Hw
y 

12
 S

to
rm

 D
ra

in
 P

ip
e 

Li
ne

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

7-
91

30
5-

60
17

W
or

k 
O

rd
er

/A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ys

te
m

 (C
M

M
S)

 (1
st

 y
r. 

- $
25

k 
on

go
in

g)
55

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

91
43

5-
60

17
Ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s P

ro
je

ct
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

7-
96

31
0-

60
17

Ke
llo

gg
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
n 

Ch
an

ne
l E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Am
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

 A
ct

 (A
RP

A)
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

Item 9 
Attachment 4

61

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Attachment No. 4

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Page 1 of 2

nlozano
Polygon



Ba
la

nc
e

Co
m

m
itt

ed
16

7-
76

24
1-

34
67

Am
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

 A
ct

 F
un

d 
Re

ve
nu

e
2,

10
6,

75
6

   
   

   
   

   
  

Pr
oc

es
s h

as
 st

ar
te

d
06

9-
81

16
7-

34
69

Re
ve

nu
e 

Lo
ss

 d
ue

 to
 C

O
VI

D-
19

 (R
ec

ov
er

y 
to

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
Re

ve
nu

e)
1,

44
1,

25
4

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
7-

85
06

9-
34

67
of

fs
et

 a
cc

ou
nt

Pr
oc

es
s N

ot
 st

ar
te

d 
(A

va
ila

bl
e)

 A
RP

A 
Fu

nd
 p

ay
m

en
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

in
 Ju

ly
 2

02
1

3,
54

8,
01

0
   

   
   

   
  

Fu
nd

Ac
co

un
t

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Re

ve
nu

e
N

ov
. 8

th
M

id
-Y

ea
r

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
Am

er
ic

an
 R

es
cu

e 
Pl

an
 A

ct
 F

un
d 

(F
un

d 
16

7)

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Am
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

 A
ct

 (A
RP

A)
 F

un
di

ng
 A

pp
ro

pr
ia

tio
ns

Re
cr

ea
tio

n 
Pa

rk
s a

nd
 M

ar
in

a 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t (
RP

M
)

16
7-

96
31

0-
86

27
Ha

rb
or

 T
he

at
er

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 &
 R

ep
ai

rs
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
7-

96
51

0-
86

27
Co

m
m

un
ity

 G
ar

de
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
37

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

AR
PA

 R
ev

en
ue

 L
os

s R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
t F

un
d 

(F
un

d 
06

9)
Ci

ty
w

id
e 

(C
W

)
06

9-
90

11
3-

34
69

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 P

re
m

iu
m

 P
ay

 (2
 y

ea
rs

)
13

3,
60

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
Fi

re
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t (
FD

)
06

9-
91

45
5-

34
69

Re
sc

ue
 C

oa
ts

 a
nd

 P
PE

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
06

9-
93

14
0-

34
69

Ba
th

ro
om

 R
em

od
el

 (
m

ov
ed

 to
 M

ea
su

re
 S

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

06
9-

96
41

5-
34

69
Ty

pe
 - 

5 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
(m

ov
ed

 to
 M

ea
su

re
 S

)
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Po
lic

e 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t (
PD

)
06

9-
96

42
0-

34
69

Bu
lle

t p
ro

of
 w

in
do

w
s f

or
 th

e 
fr

on
t P

D
45

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
97

4,
31

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
95

4,
30

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

74
6,

89
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
 B

al
an

ce
16

7-
76

24
1-

19
10

Am
er

ic
an

 R
es

cu
e 

Pl
an

 A
ct

 F
un

d 
Re

ve
nu

e
34

1,
04

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

06
9-

81
16

7-
34

69
Re

ve
nu

e 
Lo

ss
 d

ue
 to

 C
O

VI
D-

19
 (R

ec
ov

er
y 

to
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

Re
ve

nu
e)

1,
23

2,
65

4
   

   
   

   
   

  1,
57

3,
69

6
   

   
   

   
   

Item 9 
Attachment 4

62

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Page 2 of 2

nlozano
Typewritten Text
Attachment No. 4



PREPARED BY: Amanda Dum, Management Analyst 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:      Nouae Vue, Public Works Director 

  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving the 

Application for Grant Funds from the Recreational Trails Program. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be no fiscal impact associated with the proposed action.  

Matching funds for this grant application will come from the Park Development Fund.  Additionally, 

the funds set aside for the construction of the Prosperity Community Garden Project will also be 

used as an additional match.  The use of the additional funds from the Prosperity Community Garden 

Project are hoped to make our grant application score higher in the evaluation process and ultimately 

result in the fund of the McCoy Creek Trail Phase III Project.  

 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance. Enhance Environment 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST-ACT) provides 

funds to the State of California for Grants to federal, state, local and non-profit organizations to 

acquire, develop and/or maintain motorized and non-motorized trail Projects.  The State 

Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the responsibility for the administration 

of the program within the State.  

 

STAFF REPORT:  The available Recreational Trail Programs Grant will allow the City to apply 

for grant funds to complete a portion of Phase III of the McCoy Creek Trail (Trail).  This Project, if 

awarded, would enhance the Prosperity Community Garden Project (Garden) by providing a Class 

I paved trail for accessing the Garden.   The Garden and Phase III will act in tandem to create a 

destination location at the western most terminus of the Trail.   It will also create a 

garden/park/gathering location in an area of town that is not currently serviced by an easily accessible 

existing park or other open green space.    

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt this resolution to apply for Recreation Trails Program 

grant funding and authorizes the City Manager, or their designee, to execute all necessary documents. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving the Application 

for Grant Funds from the Recreational Trails Program. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Resolution No. 2022-___:  Approving the Application for Grant Funds from the Recreational 

Trails Program. 

 

 

Item 10

63



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

64



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

RESOLUTION NO.  2022 - ____ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR GRANT FUNDS FROM THE 

RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST-ACT) provides 

funds to the State of California for Grants to federal, state, local and non-profit organizations 

to acquire, develop and/or maintain motorized and non-motorized trail Projects; and  

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the 

responsibility for the administration of the program within the State, setting up necessary 

procedures governing Project Application under the program; and  

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 

Recreation require the Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of Application(s) before 

submission of said Application(s) to the State; and  

WHEREAS, the Applicant will enter into a Contract with the State of California to 

complete the Project(s);  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City hereby:  

1. Approves the filing of an Application for the Recreational Trails Program; and

2. Certifies that the Project is consistent with the Applicant’s general plan or the

equivalent planning document; and

3. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available prior to commencement of

any work on the Project(s) included in this Application, sufficient funds to operate

and maintain the Project(s); and

4. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General

Provisions contained in the Contract shown in the Procedural Guide; and

5. Appoints the City Manager or their designee as agent to conduct all negotiations,

execute and submit all documents, including, but not limited to Applications,

agreements, amendments, payment requests and so on, which may be necessary for

the completion of the Project.

6. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules,

regulations and guidelines

Item 10 
Attachment 1

65



 

Resolution No. 2022-___ 

Adopted March 15, 2022 

Page 2 of 2 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the following vote at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Suisun City duly held on the 15th day of March 2022: 

AYES: Council Members:    

NOES: Council Members:    

ABSENT: Council Members:    

ABSTAIN: Council Members:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022. 

 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

Item 10 
Attachment 1

66



PREPARED BY:   Nick Lozano, Associate Engineer  

REVIEWED BY:  Nouae Vue, Public Works Director  

APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022  

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-___:  Accepting the 

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon Project, Federal Project No. HSIPL-5032(033), as Complete, 

and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for the Project.   

 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no impact to the General Fund.  The Rectangular Rapid Flashing 

Beacon Project (Project), Federal Project No. HSIPL-5032(033), is funded with Highway Safety 

Improvement Program (HSIP) Cycle 9 allocation ($205,000), the Off-Site Street Improvement 

Program (OSSIP, $46,200), and the Lawler Ranch Maintenance Assessment District (District, 

$5,800).  The District funds were for the removal of a tree and the replacement of sidewalk 

segments at Location #3 that have been uplifted by root intrusion from said tree. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance, Enhance Environment.   

 

BACKGROUND:  On October 5, 2021, the City Council awarded the construction contract for the 

Project to Radman Electric in the amount of $230,000.02.   

 

STAFF REPORT:  The Contractor has completed the work under the construction contract. The 

Project installed Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB) and other crossing improvements at 

the following three locations: 

1) Existing mid-block crossing on Merganser Drive fronting the Senior Center. 

2) Pintail Drive at Scoter Way, fronting the Suisun City library and the Suisun Elementary 

School. 

3) New pedestrian crossing on Lawler Ranch Parkway between Fennie Way and Hillborn Way 

(this new pedestrian crossing connects to the walkway to Falls Park). 

 

The Project scope completed include the following: 

• Locations #1 and #2:  Replacement of the existing in-roadway lighted crosswalk systems 

with rectangular rapid flashing beacons; replacement of the crosswalk with a high visibility 

crosswalk; and installation of pavement markings, striping and roadway signs. 

• Location #3:  Installation of rectangular rapid flashing beacons, high visibility crosswalk, a 

concrete curb extension (aka bulbout), pavement markings, striping, roadway signs, and curb 

ramps, as well as removal of a tree and replacement of sidewalk damaged by root intrusion 

from said tree. 

 

The City has received, reviewed and approved the Contractor’s final invoice for this contract.  The 

final construction contract is $246,376.27, which is $10,623.73 less than the construction budget of 

$257,000. 

 

Item 11

67



 
 

Radman Electric has completed the Project in an acceptable satisfactory manner, and it is now 

appropriate to file the Notice of Completion (NOC) with the County for the work completed.  Staff 

recommends accepting the project as complete and authorizing the City Manager to file and record 

the NOC with the County, which will then start the one-year warranty period on the completed 

improvements. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2022-

___:  Accepting the Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon Project, Federal Project No. HSIPL-

5032(033), as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record the Notice of Completion for 

the Project.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-__: Accepting the Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon Project, Federal 

Project No. HSIPL-5032(033), as Complete, and Authorizing the City Manager to Record 

the Notice of Completion for the Project.   

2. Project Location Map. 

3. Notice of Completion. 

4. Photos. 

Item 11

68



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

ACCEPTING THE RECTANGULAR RAPID FLASHING BEACON PROJECT, 

FEDERAL PROJECT NO. HSIPL-5032(033), AS COMPLETE, AND AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO RECORD THE NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE 

PROJECT 

 

 WHEREAS, the City has been awarded Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 

Cycle 9 grant allocation in the amount of $248,100 from the California Department of 

Transportation (Caltrans) for the design and construction of the Rectangular Rapid Flashing 

Beacon Project (Project), Federal Project No. HSIPL-5032(033); and 

 WHEREAS, the Project has $257,000 budgeted for the construction phase, of which 

$205,000 is funded by the HSIP Cycle 9 grant; $46,200 is being funded by the Off-site Street 

Improvement Program (OSSIP); and $5,8,000 is funded by the Lawler Ranch Maintenance 

Assessment District (District) for removal of a tree and replacement of sidewalk segments that 

have been uplifted by roots of said tree within the District, and  

 WHEREAS, on October 5, 2021, the City Council awarded the construction contract of 

$230,000.02, plus 10% for contingencies, for the Project to Radman Electric; and 

 WHEREAS, the construction contract includes installing rectangular rapid flashing 

beacons and other pedestrian crossing improvements on Merganser Drive fronting the Senior 

Center, on Pintail Drive fronting Suisun City Library, and on Lawler Ranch Parkway between 

Fennie Way and Hillborn Way; and 

 WHEREAS, Radman Electric has completed all work under the contract for the Project 

and is ready to receive a Notice of Completion.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City does hereby accept the completed improvements completed on the Rectangular Rapid 

Flashing Beacons Project, Federal Project No. HSIPL-5032(033), as completed, and authorizes 

the City Manager to take such measures as necessary to execute and record the Notice of 

Completion. 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on Tuesday, the 15th day of March 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022.  
 

   

 Anita Skinner 

 City Clerk 

 

Item 11 
Attachment 1

69



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

70



LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P
 

R
ec

ta
n

gu
la

r 
R

ap
id

 F
la

sh
in

g 
B

ea
co

n
s 

P
ro

je
ct

, F
ed

er
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 N
o

. H
SI

P
L-

5
0

32
(0

3
3

) 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 #

1
:  

M
er

ga
n

se
r 

D
ri

ve
 

b
et

w
ee

n
 S

u
n

se
t 

A
ve

n
u

e 
an

d
 W

ig
eo

n
 W

ay
, 

fr
o

n
ti

n
g 

th
e 

Se
n

io
r 

C
e

n
te

r 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 #

2
:  

P
in

ta
il 

D
ri

ve
 a

t 
Sc

o
te

r 
W

ay
, 

fr
o

n
ti

n
g 

th
e 

Su
is

u
n

 C
it

y 
lib

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 

Su
is

u
n

 E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

o
o

l 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 #

3
:  

La
w

le
r 

R
an

ch
 P

ar
kw

ay
 

b
et

w
ee

n
 F

en
n

ie
 W

ay
 a

n
d

 H
ill

b
o

rn
 W

ay
 

(a
t 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
p

at
h

w
ay

 t
o

 L
aw

le
r 

Fa
lls

 P
ar

k)
 

A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t 

N
o
. 
2 

Item 11 
Attachment 2

71



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

72



1 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Name Public Works Department   

Street CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

Address 701 CIVIC CENTER BLVD. 

City & SUISUN CITY, CA 94585 

State, Zip 

No Fee, per code 27283 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

A.P.N. 

Notice is hereby given that: 

1. The undersigned is owner of the interest or estate stated below in the property hereinafter described.

2. The full name of the undersigned is City of Suisun City 

3. The full address of the undersigned is 701 Civic Center Blvd. 

Suisun City, CA 94585 

4. The nature of the title of the undersigned is: In fee.  N/A
(If other than fee, strike “In fee” and insert, for example, “purchaser under contract of purchase,” or “lessee.”)

5. The full names and full addresses of all persons, if any, who hold title with the undersigned as joint tenants or

as tenants in common are: NONE

NAMES ADDRESSES 

6. The names of the predecessors in the interest of the undersigned, if the property was transferred subsequent to

the commencement of the work of improvement herein referred to: NONE

NAMES ADDRESSES 

 (If no transfer made, insert “none.”) 

7. A work of improvement on the property hereinafter described was completed on:  March 15, 2022

8. The name of the contractor, if any, for such work of improvement was Radman Electric 

(If no contractor for work of improvement as a whole, insert “none.”) 

9. The property on which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of       Suisun City , 

County of  Solano , State of California, and is described as follows: 

 Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons Project, Federal Project No. HSIPL-5032(033) 

10. The street address of said property is 1) Merganser Drive between Sunset Avenue and E. Wigeon Way,

2) Pintail Drive at Scoter Way, and 3) Lawler Ranch Parkway between Fennie Way and Hillborn Way.

11. I declare under penalty of perjury the foregoing is true and correct.

Signature of 

owner named  

Dated: in paragraph 2 

By Greg Folsom, City Manager 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE 

Item 11 
Attachment 3

73



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

74



P
h

o
to

s 

R
ec

ta
n

gu
la

r 
R

ap
id

 F
la

sh
in

g 
B

ea
co

n
s 

P
ro

je
ct

, F
ed

er
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 N
o

. H
SI

P
L-

5
0

32
(0

3
3

) 
P

ag
e 

1 
o

f 
2 

 Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 #

1 
– 

M
er

ga
n

se
r 

D
ri

ve
 f

ro
n

ti
n

g 
th

e 
Se

n
io

r 
C

en
te

r:
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

re
-C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

o
st

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 

  
 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 #

2 
– 

P
in

ta
il 

D
ri

ve
 f

ro
n

ti
n

g 
th

e 
Su

is
u

n
 C

it
y 

Li
b

ra
ry

: 

  
 

A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t 

N
o
. 
4

 

Item 11 
Attachment 4

75



P
h

o
to

s 
R

ec
ta

n
gu

la
r 

R
ap

id
 F

la
sh

in
g 

B
ea

co
n

s 
P

ro
je

ct
, F

ed
er

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 N

o
. H

SI
P

L-
5

0
32

(0
3

3
) 

P
ag

e 
2 

o
f 

2 
 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 #

2 
– 

La
w

le
r 

R
an

ch
 P

ar
kw

ay
 b

et
w

ee
n

 F
en

n
ie

 W
ay

 a
n

d
 H

ill
b

o
rn

 W
ay

: 
 

 
 

 
 

P
re

-C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
 

 
 

 
P

o
st

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

re
-C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

 
 

 
 

P
o

st
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

  
 

 

A
tt

ac
h
m

en
t 

N
o
. 
4

 

Item 11 
Attachment 4

76



PREPARED / APPROVED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

  

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Endorsing its support 

for Amending the Governance Structure of CAP Solano Joint Powers Authority 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be a no fiscal impact to the City. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance. 

 

BACKGROUND:  In 1999, through a collaborative effort between Solano County and various 

cities, the Community Action Partnership (CAP) Solano Joint Powers Authority (JPA), formerly 

known as the Solano Safety Net Consortium (“SSNC”), was formed to address poverty and 

homelessness on a countywide basis.   CAP Solano is designated as the Community Action Agency 

for Solano County in order to receive State Community Services Block Grant funding, serves as 

the Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Collaborative Applicant for the Continuum of Care 

(CoC) Program, and is responsible for the administration and function of the countywide Homeless 

Management Information System (HMIS). 

 

Over the years, Solano County became less engaged with CAP Solano and city staff members have 

been providing leadership and guidance.  However, as homelessness has become an increasingly 

difficult issue throughout the county, and as there is a considerable amount of money at the state 

and federal level that is becoming available to help address this issue, there is interest in developing 

greater collaboration regionally to maximize Solano County’s ability to make an impact 

collectively. 

 

STAFF REPORT:  On March 3, Solano County Supervisors Mitch Mashburn and Jim Spering 

hosted a meeting and invited two elected representatives from each of the cities in Solano County.  

Vice Mayor Alma Hernandez and Councilmember Mike Hudson attended representing Suisun City.  

During that meeting, there was a consensus reached amongst all the attending elected officials that 

there was an interest in amending the leadership in CAP Solano.  Each jurisdiction was requested to 

go back to their respective Councils and discuss approving the attached resolution. 

 

Currently, Vice Mayor Hernandez and Councilmember Hudson are appointed to the “2x2 

Committee on Homelessness.”  Should CAP Solano amend their bylaws to require two elected 

officials from each member jurisdiction to the CAP Solano Board of Directors, Council will need to 

appoint two members from the Suisun City Council. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 

2022-____: Endorsing its support for Amending the Governance Structure of CAP Solano Joint 

Powers Authority 

 

 

 

Item 12

77



ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-____: Endorsing its support for Amending the Governance Structure 

of CAP Solano Joint Powers Authority 

2. CAP Solano JPA Bylaws 

3. CAP Solano JPA Agreement (1999) 

Item 12

78



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

ENDORSING ITS SUPPORT FOR AMENDING THE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

OF CAP SOLANO JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

WHEREAS, in 1999, through a collaborative effort between Solano County and 

various cities, the Community Action Partnership (CAP) Solano Joint Powers Authority 

(JPA), formerly known as the Solano Safety Net Consortium (“SSNC”), was formed to 

address poverty and homelessness on a countywide basis; and 

WHEREAS, CAP Solano is designated as the Community Action Agency for Solano 

County in order to receive State Community Services Block Grant funding, serves as the 

Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Collaborative Applicant for the Continuum of Care 

(CoC) Program, and is responsible for the administration and function of the countywide 

Homeless Management Information System (HMIS); and 

WHEREAS, while CAP Solano has served the residents of Solano County well since 

its formation, greater collaboration is needed between the County and cities to develop a more 

effective response to homelessness; and 

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that one option for greater collaboration 

amongst the Solano County jurisdictions is to change the governance of the CAP Solano 

Board of Directors to require membership be comprised of local elected officials; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of CAP Solano that the CAP Solano Board of 

Directors be comprised of two elected officials from each of the city councils of Benicia, 

Dixon, Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun City, Vacaville, and Vallejo along with two members from 

the Solano County Board of Supervisors.  

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY HEREBY 

RESOLVES: 

Section 1. The City Council supports a change to the CAP Solano Joint Powers 

Agreement to amend the membership requirement of the CAP Solano Board of Directors to 

be comprised of two elected officials of its member jurisdiction and be supported by a 

technical advisory committee staffed by subject matter representatives from each member 

jurisdiction. 

Section 2. The City Council directs the City Manager to take all steps necessary to 

effectuate the intent of this Resolution, up to, and including, drafting an amendment to  the 

CAP Solano JPA Agreement for this Council’s consideration and approval.  

 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City held on Tuesday the 15th day of March 2022 by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers:    

NOES: Councilmembers:    

ABSENT: Councilmembers:    

ABSTAIN: Councilmembers:    

 WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022.  

   

 Anita Skinner, City Clerk 

Item 12 
Attachment 1

79



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

80



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 1 

 

ARTICLE 1:  PURPOSE 

 
The Community Action Partnership of Solano, JPA shall be known as the CAP Solano, JPA. 

As used in these Bylaws, the words “JPA” shall refer to and mean the Community Action 

Partnership of Solano, JPA. 

 

LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
The Solano Safety Net Consortium (the “Consortium”) was established in 1999 by a Joint 

Exercise of Powers Agreement ("Agreement") which was approved by the governing bodies 

of the following California cities: Benicia, Fairfield, Rio Vista, Suisun City, and Vallejo, (the 

"Cities”) and later, in October 2014, by Vacaville; as well as, the County of Solano (the 

"County"), (all signatories collectively referred to as the "Agencies"). The agreement was 

executed by the Mayor of each City, respectively, and the Chairperson of the Board of 

Supervisors of the County. Once executed in 1999, the Joint Powers Agency became the 

Community Action Partnership of Solano, JPA.  The Agreement was authorized by the 

Joints Powers Authority Act ("the Act") Government Code §6500, et sec., as a Joint Powers 

Agreement.  

 

The JPA has the powers common to the Agencies to provide homeless programs and other 

related services. The JPA has the power to do all acts necessary for the exercise of its 

common powers, including those powers enumerated in the Act and included in the 

Agreement.  

 

The JPA was created for the purpose of exercising independent powers, separate and apart 

from the Cities and County. The duties of the JPA are to create a public entity to provide 

oversight and coordination of homeless and safety net services to the residents of the 

Agencies; to serve as the conduit for safety net funding support; to administer such funds 

and make grants available to other non-profit entities for services to the homeless; to set 

policy and be the central agency for the oversight and technical assistance for the operation 

of homeless shelters, transitional housing, homeless assistance centers, community action 

councils and other safety net services; and to undertake such other programs as the Board 

of Directors may authorize, including such duties and tasks required to receive and 

distribute federal, state, local, and other funding to support the JPA’s mission. 
 
 

  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

81



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 2 

ARTICLE I1:  ADMINISTRATION 

 

a. The JPA shall be a public entity separate and apart from each of the Agencies, and 

shall administer the Agreement. 

 

b. Board 

 

1. Created. The JPA shall be administered by a Board of Directors (the 

“Board”). The Board shall be called the "Board of Directors of the Community 

Action Partnership of Solano, JPA." All voting power of the JPA shall reside 

in the Board. 

 

2. Board Directors/Board Members. The legislative bodies of each of the 

Agencies shall appoint by resolution one Director/Member and one alternate.  

 

3. At-Large Director. The Board of Directors may, by resolution, appoint an 

additional Director and alternate. The Board may wish to appoint an At 

Large Director and alternate if there are an even number of Directors.  

 

4. Terms; Vacancies. Each Director and alternate shall serve a two-year term 

commencing on July 1 and ending on June 30 of the second year after their 

appointment. Each Director and alternate shall serve at the pleasure of the 

body that appointed them. Vacancies filled during a term shall be filled in the 

same manner as the original appointments and expire at the time of the 

original appointment. 

 

5. Compensation; Expenses. Directors and alternates shall not receive 

compensation for service on the Board. Directors and alternates may receive 

reimbursement for necessary expenses, incurred in connection with his or her 

services as a Director or alternate, with prior approval and pursuant to 

resolution of the board. 

 

c. Meetings of the Board. Meetings shall be held in accordance with Article III. 

 

d. Minutes. The Secretary (as defined in Article II, Paragraph (3) hereof)  or Board staff 

shall keep minutes of the meetings of the Board, and shall, as soon as possible after 

each meeting, cause a copy of the minutes to be forwarded to each Director and 

alternate for review and to post a copy once they have been approved.  

 

e. Voting. Each Director (and potentially each alternate) shall have one vote. Said vote 

can only be exercised by the Director or alternate in attendance at the meeting and 

there shall be no voting taken by proxy. No alternate may vote if the Director for 

whom that alternate was appointed is in attendance at the time the vote is to be 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

82



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 3 

cast. In no event shall any Agency have more than one vote. Should any party elect 

to withdraw from the JPA, such party shall no longer have a vote in any JPA 

matter. 

 

f. Bylaws. The Board may adopt and amend bylaws, rules and regulations for the 

conduct of its meetings or as are necessary for the purposes hereof.  

 

g. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the JPA shall be from July 1 of one year to June 30 of 

the following year, or any other twelve-month period hereafter designated by the 

Directors.  

 

h. Executive Advisory Committee. The Executive Advisory Committee (the 

"Committee") of the JPA shall consist of the Officers of the JPA Board. The 

Committee shall perform such duties as are delegated by the Board, including 

coordinating and overseeing JPA staff, and corresponding with outside agencies. In 

order to maintain transparency, the Executive Advisory Committee shall report to 

the Board regularly on the work of the Committee and shall seek the Board approval 

of any decisions related to any responsibilities of the JPA under these bylaws.  

 

i. Personnel. The Board shall be responsible for the regulation of all personnel 

activities, including but not limited to the selection, recruitment, discipline, and 

discharge of any JPA staff. The Board may designate the Board Chair or the 

Executive Committee to exercise the authority of the Board to perform any or all of 

the duties of this Section (i) and to take such action as is necessary and appropriate 

with regard to those duties. 

 

The JPA shall have designated staff to assist with carrying out the activities of the 

JPA and designate funding to support the JPA staff position as appropriate. The 

staff shall be housed in the office of one of the JPA jurisdictional representatives. 

The Board shall designate the jurisdiction to house the JPA staff, the job description 

and the duties of the JPA staff. The JPA representative whose jurisdiction houses 

the staff person shall be responsible for the recruitment, supervision and training of 

the staff. The JPA Board must approve the selected candidate. The JPA staff person 

shall report and be accountable to the full JPA Board. This provision of the bylaws 

shall be reviewed in 2023 and at least every two years thereafter.  

 

 

ARTICLE II1:  OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES 

 

a. Election and Terms of Officers: The Board shall elect Officers from among the 

Directors at the regular January meeting by asking for nominations. Candidates 

may self-nominate. After all nominations have been made, the Board must vote on 

the nominations. The nominee with the most votes will be elected to fill the Office. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

83



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 4 

The current Officers may be re-elected. If a vacancy occurs outside of the normal 

election cycle, the Board shall elect a person from among the Directors to fill the 

unexpired term of the vacant office. The election results are effective immediately 

and the elected shall assume his/her duties immediately. 

 

b. Officers.   

 

1. Chair. The JPA shall have a Chair who shall be a Director and who shall be 

selected as Chair by the Board and who shall perform the duties normal to 

said office. 

 

A. The Chair may sign contracts on behalf of the JPA and shall perform 

such other duties as may be imposed by the Board. 

 

B. The Chair calls the meeting to order and announces the time of 

convening. 

 

C. The Chair determines and announces the business of the Board and 

the order of matters to be taken up and acted upon.  

 

D. The Chair recommends, for Board approval, creation and appointment 

of Committees to assist the Board in accomplishing its work, which 

may include standing committees to address matters of ongoing 

interest and/or ad hoc workgroups to address specific matters for a 

specific time period.  Committees and workgroups may consist of 

Board members and/or nonmembers to assist the Board in its work. 

The Committees shall provide a report about their work regularly to 

the full JPA Board.  

 

E. The Chair recognizes members of the Board and other speakers 

addressing the Board.  

 

F. The Chair preserves order and decorum and may decide all questions 

of order, subject to appeal. In cases in which an appeal is made, the 

decision of the Chair prevails unless overridden by a majority vote of 

the Board.  

 

G. The Chair should not take any action or impart any communication on 

behalf of or in the name of the Board unless authorized to do so by a 

majority vote of the Board. 

 

H. The Chair shall be the Executive Director of the JPA and is authorized 

to execute contracts approved by the Board and to perform any duties 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

84



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 5 

necessary and appropriate for the day-to-day management and 

operation of the JPA.  

 

2. Vice-Chair. The JPA shall have a Vice-Chair who shall be a Director and who 

shall be elected as Vice-Chair by the Board. In the absence of the Chair, the 

Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair and shall perform all duties 

normal to such office. In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair, the 

Directors shall elect a Chair pro tempore to exercise the powers and assume 

the duties of the Chair during the absence.  

 

3. Secretary. The JPA shall have a Secretary who shall be selected by the Board 

and shall perform all duties normal to such office. 

 

4. Treasurer and Auditor. Pursuant to Sections 6505.5 and 6505.6 of the Act, 

the Treasurer of one of the cities or the county treasurer or a certified public 

accountant shall be designated by the Board as the Treasurer/Auditor of the 

JPA. The Treasurer/Auditor shall be the depositary, shall have custody of all 

of the accounts, funds and money of the JPA from whatever source, shall 

have the duties and obligations set forth in Sections 6505 and 6505.5 of the 

Act and shall assure strict accountability of all funds and reporting of all 

receipts and disbursements of the JPA. As provided in Section 6505 and 

Section 6505.6 of the Act, the Treasurer/Auditor shall make arrangements 

with a certified public accountant for an annual independent audit of 

accounts and records of the JPA.  

 

5. Officers in Charge of Records, Funds and Accounts. Pursuant to Section 

6505.1 of the Act, the Treasurer/Auditor shall have charge of, handle and 

have access to all accounts, funds and money of the JPA and all records of the 

JPA relating thereto; and the Secretary shall have charge of, handle and 

have access to all other records of the JPA. 

 

6. General Counsel. The Board may appoint a General Counsel of the JPA who 

shall provide legal advice and perform such other duties as may be prescribed 

by the Board.  

 

7. Other Employees. The Board shall have the power to appoint and employ 

such other employees, consultants and independent contractors as may be 

necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Agreement.  

 

8. Assistant Officers. The Board may by resolution appoint such assistants to 

act in the place of the Secretary or other officers of the JPA (other than any 

Director) as the Board shall from time to time deem appropriate. 

 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

85



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 6 

9. Removal and Reappointment. The Board may remove a Director for cause by 

a two-third majority vote of Independent Board Directors. Cause must be 

presented to the Officer and they must have an opportunity to respond prior 

to a motion for removal being made or considered. 

 

10. Nothing in this paragraph, however, shall authorize the Board to dismiss a 

Director or alternate from their seat on the Board, with the exception of the 

At-Large Director and alternate. Only the appointing jurisdiction may do so. 

 

ARTICLE IV:  MEETINGS 

 

a. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the JPA Board shall take place on a monthly 

basis on the fourth Thursday of each month at 10:00 am at the Fairfield Community 

Center unless otherwise noted in the public posting. 72-hours advance notice of 

meetings of the Board shall be given to the Directors and the public per all Brown 

Act regulations. 

 

b. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 54956 of the California Government Code: they may be 

called upon 24 hours' notice by the Chair of the Board or by a majority of the 

Directors; the call for a special meeting shall specify the time and place within the 

County where the meeting will take place; and no other business shall be considered 

at a special meeting except that for which the meeting was called and that which 

appears on the agenda. 

 

c. Public Meetings. All meetings of the Board and its standing Committees, including, 

without limitation, regular, adjourned regular and special meetings, shall be called, 

noticed, held and conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code 

section 54950, et sec., and shall be open to the public. All regular meetings of the 

Board shall be held upon at least 72-hours public notice which shall specify the date, 

time and place of the meeting. Meeting notice shall be posted at least 72 hours in 

advance. Written minutes of each meeting shall be taken and shall be public 

documents. Copies of minutes shall be sent to Directors and posted/made publicly 

available. Closed sessions shall be held in compliance with the Brown Act.  

 

d. Meeting Materials. All materials for Board members shall be delivered to members, 

to be received at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  The materials shall always 

include the agenda that was posted and available to the public at least 72 hours 

before the meeting. 

 

e. Roberts' Rules. The general procedure meetings shall be governed by Roberts' Rules 

of Order, Revised Edition.  

 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

86



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 7 

f. Quorum. A majority of the Board must be present to constitute a quorum for 

purposes of convening a meeting and transacting the business of the JPA. If a 

quorum is not present when the meeting is scheduled to commence, a majority of the 

Board present may cancel the meeting, delay its commencement or meet as a 

Committee of the Board for the purpose solely of discussion of issues. Because all 

locations at which any Board Director attends the meeting must be publicized in 

advance, Board Directors generally cannot attend the meeting remotely. However, if 

a Board Director provides suitable advance public notice of and access to the location 

from which they will dial into the meeting, then a remote attendee shall be counted 

toward quorum.  

 

g. Voting. Voting upon any question shall be by voice vote or by show of hands of the 

Board. Unless otherwise specified herein, a simple majority vote of non-conflicted 

Board members is needed to pass a resolution or conduct other Board business.  

 

In the event that less than three Board Directors are Independent and are available 

to vote on a resolution, or in other situations at the discretion of the JPA, the issue 

will be assigned to a Committee of Independent community members for a vote. The 

JPA staff will be responsible for assembling the Independent Committee, which 

must include at least four (4) members. The Committee’s decision is final.  

 

If a Director abstains on any vote, the abstention shall be reflected in the minutes of 

the meeting. All votes and abstentions must be accurately reflected in the minutes. 

Because all locations at which any Board Director attends the meeting must be 

publicized in advance, Board Directors generally cannot cast a vote remotely. 

However, if a Board Director provides suitable advance public notice of and access to 

the location from which they will be voting, then a remote attendee’s vote shall be 

counted and recorded.  

 

h. Interruption of Meetings. If a meeting is interrupted by the willful and disruptive 

behavior of any individual or group of persons so as to render orderly conduct of the 

meeting unfeasible, the Chair may order removal of the disorderly persons or may 

order the meeting room cleared and may continue the meeting after order is 

restored.  

 

i. Changed Location of Meetings. The Board may meet at locations within the County 

other than its regular meeting place if doing so would assist the Board in performing 

its duties and it is otherwise in the JPA’s best interest; however, the location of the 

meeting must be posted per Brown Act regulations and Directors must be notified.  

 

j. Meeting Cancellation. A notice of cancellation of a regular meeting shall be given to 

Directors by phone, fax, first class mail or email and posted in a location open and 

accessible to the public at least 24 hours before the meeting was scheduled to 

commence.  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

87



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 8 

 

k. Public Comment. On any matter included in the agenda for action by the Board, 

members of the public shall be allowed to address the Board before action is taken. 

On any matter not listed on the agenda put within the jurisdiction of the Board, 

members of the public may address the Board during the public comment period.  

 

• The Chair may limit the time allowed for comment from members of the 

public before action is taken on an agenda item to 3 (three) minutes per 

speaker. These limits may be waived by the Chair or by majority vote of the 

Board. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE V:  AGENDAS 

 

a. Legal Requirements. The Brown Act requires that the agenda for each meeting be 

posted in places accessible to the public at least 72 hours prior to the meeting and 

that action may be taken only on posted agenda items. Action items may be added to 

the agenda after posting only in the following instances: 

 

1. When a majority of the JPA members decide that there is an emergency 

situation, which requires prompt action due to actual or threatened 

disruption of public facilities;  

2. When two-thirds of the members present (or all members if less than two-

thirds are present) determine there is a need for immediate action and the 

need to take action “came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to 

the agenda being posted.” This exception requires a degree of urgency. 

Further, an item cannot be considered under this provision if the legislative 

body or the staff knew about the need to take immediate action before the 

agenda was posted. A new need does not arise because staff forgot to put an 

item on the agenda or because an applicant missed a deadline; or  

3. When an item appeared on the agenda of, and was continued from, a meeting 

held not more than five days earlier. 

 

b. Agenda Format. Each agenda shall include the type of meeting (regular or special), 

date, time and place of meeting, items to be considered with a brief general 

description of the item of business to be considered. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call: The agenda shall state the current number of Directors necessary 

to form a quorum.  

 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

88



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 9 

3. Presentations 

 

4. General Public Comment: Each agenda shall include an item for any member 

of the public to comment on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board. 

 

5. Additions or Deletions from the Agenda  

 

6. Approval of the Agenda 

 

7. Consent Calendar: Each regular meeting agenda shall include the approval of 

the previous regular meeting’s minutes, as well as any  special meetings 

that occurred in the interim.  

 

8. Old Business & Standing Agenda Items: If an agenda item is not covered 

sufficiently during the allotted time, it may be scheduled under Old Business 

at a designated future meeting. 

 

A. Standing Reports may be made as necessary.  

 

B. Report of the Chair/Executive Director of the Board on items of 

interest to the Board. 

 

C. Report of the Secretary on items of interest to the Board. 

 

D. Report of the Treasurer-Auditor on items of interest to the Board. 

 

E. Committee Reports on items of interest to the Board. 

 

9. New Business: If a new item of business requires the attention of the Board 

and it does not fall within any of the standing reports, it may be scheduled 

under new business.  

 

10. Staff Report: If the Board has requested information from the Staff and it 

does not fall under another agenda item, it may be scheduled under staff 

report. 

 

11. Comments from Board Members  

 

12. Adjournment 

 
  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

89



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 10 

ARTICLE VI:  RELATIONSHIP TO TRIPARTITE ADVISORY BOARD 

 

The JPA receives advice and counsel from the Tripartite Advisory Board as the Community 

Action Agency for purposes of the Community Service Block Grant program and reports to 

the Tripartite Advisory Board on outcomes and performance. From time to time, the JPA 

Board will be called upon to appoint individuals to the Tripartite Advisory Board. The 

appointment of those individuals shall be pursuant to the following: 

 

a. Low Income Representation 

 

• The JPA Board shall designate the Continuum of Care, composed 

predominately of and representing low-income people in the service area, to 

elect members from within their group to the Tripartite Advisory Board or if 

necessary, will choose someone from among their elected officers/board 

members to serve on the Tripartite Advisory Board. 

 

b. Private Sector Representation 

 

• The JPA Board shall select individuals who are officials or members of 

business, industry, labor, religious, law enforcement, education, or other 

major groups and interest in the community served to serve as Private Board 

Members for the Tripartite Advisory Board. 

 

c. Public Sector Representation 

 

• The JPA Board shall select elected public officials, holding office on the date 

of selection, or their representatives, except that if the number of such elected 

officials reasonably available and willing to serve on the board is less than 

one-third of the membership of the board, appointive public officials or their 

representatives may be counted in meeting the one third requirement. 

 

ARTICLE VII:  FIVE-YEAR REGIONAL STRATEGIC PLAN 

 

On March 17, 2017, the JPA Board voted to approve “Neighbors Helping Neighbors: 

Forward Together” (“Neighbors Helping Neighbors”), Housing First Solano’s five-year 

regional strategic plan to respond to homelessness in Solano County. An action-oriented 

implementation plan has been created based on the Neighbors Helping Neighbors plan and 

has been updated annually with progress made towards reaching the Plan goals. Neighbors 

Helping Neighbors Plan and updates can be found on the JPA website at 

www.capsolanojpa.org.  

 

The annual implementation plan shall include:  

Item 12 
Attachment 2

90



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 11 

 

1. The activities to be accomplished to move the plan strategies forward 

(including an identification of which strategy/goal each activity is intended to 

support); 

2. The parties (individuals or organizations) responsible for each activity; 

3. The deadline for completion of each activity; 

4. A measurement or metric to determine whether/when each activity is 

accomplished; and 

5. To the extent possible, what necessary future activities will be possible once 

those included are accomplished.  

 

The JPA may designate funding and a strategic planning committee to carry out the 

strategic planning and implementation of the goals and activities related to addressing 

homelessness in Solano County. Annual updates on the implementation of the goal plans 

shall be provided to the JPA Board and TAB.  

 

The JPA shall invite representatives from the following groups to participate in strategic 

planning and implementation efforts:  

 

1. Tripartite Advisory Board 

2. Business community; 

3. Faith-based organizations; 

4. Formerly homeless individuals and/or people currently experiencing 

homelessness in Solano County; 

5. Healthcare providers; 

6. Housing and supportive service providers, including those currently involved 

in the Continuum of Care, as well as those who are not; 

7. Jurisdictions; 

8. Law enforcement / criminal justice; 

9. Mental health and substance abuse treatment and service providers; 

10. Property owners, landlords; 

11. Providers with specific experience working with priority subpopulations: 

Youth, Families and Children, Older Adults and Seniors, Veterans, 

Chronically Homeless; 

12. Public Housing Authorities; 

13. School system / Dept. of Education; 

14. Workforce development. 

 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

91



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 12 

ARTICLE VIII:  CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

a. Directors are subject to the conflict of interest laws and regulations under 2 CFR 

200.317; 2 CFR 200.318; 24 CFR 578.95(a); the California Political Reform Act, 

Government Code sections 81999 et seq.; California Government Code sections 1090 

et seq., the common law prohibition against bias, or any applicable conflict policy for 

the County of Solano.   

 

b. The JPA also has adopted a Conflict of Interest Code as required by the laws of the 

State of California. This code is incorporated herein by this reference. If any member 

of the Board believes he or she may have a conflict of interest on a matter, he or she 

must seek advice of the City Attorney or County Counsel before voting on such 

matter.  

 

c. The Board shall apply a reasonableness standard in determining whether a conflict 

exists. If a Director has a conflict of interest, he or she shall declare the conflict on 

the record, refrain from discussing the issue with the Board, and recuse him or 

herself from voting on the matter. 

 

d. Each director shall file a Form 700 Statement of Economic Interests annually with 

the County in accordance with statutory deadlines. 

 

e. Each member of the Board is required to review and sign the conflict of interest 

form, which will be updated and provided to the Board by staff on an annual basis. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE IX:  MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS 

 
Files containing Board minutes, correspondence, documents and records shall be 

maintained in accordance with the following records schedule:  

 

a. Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records 

pertinent to a CSBG award shall be retained for a period of five years from the date 

of submission of the final expenditure report or, for awards that are renewed 

quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual 

financial report, as authorized by the Federal awarding agency. 

 

b. The JPA Board shall retain documentation of Continuum of Care program 

compliance with environmental review requirements established under 24 CFR part 

50. The JPA Board shall supply all available, relevant information necessary for 

HUD to perform, for each property, any environmental review required by 24 CFR 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

92



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 13 

part 50. The JPA Board shall carry out mitigating measures required by HUD or 

select an alternate eligible property.  Such documentation shall confirm that the 

JPA Board is not operating any Continuum of Care program under which it, its 

project partners, and their contractors acquires, rehabilitates, converts, leases, 

repairs, disposes of, demolishes, or constructs property, or commits or expends HUD 

or local funds for such eligible activities under this part, until HUD has performed 

an environmental review under 24 CFR part 50 and the JPA Board has received 

HUD approval of the property. 

 

c. The JPA shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures for ensuring 

that Continuum of Care program funds are used in accordance with the 

requirements of 24 CFR 578.103 and shall establish and maintain sufficient records 

to enable HUD to determine whether it is meeting the requirements of this part, 24 

CFR 578.103 as applicable. 

 

d. The JPA shall document the types of supportive services provided under any Federal 

grant program and the amounts spent on those services. The JPA Board shall review 

these records annually and adjust any service packages offered to program 

participants as necessary.  

 

e. In its role as the Collaborative Applicant to the Housing First Solano Continuum of 

Care, the JPA shall retain, for a period of five calendar years, the following 

documentation related to establishing and operating a Continuum of Care:  

 

1. Evidence that the Housing First Solano Continuum of Care Board meets the 

requirements of 24 CFR 578.5(b);  

 

2. Evidence that the Housing First Solano Continuum of Care has been 

established and operated as set forth in 24 CFR 578.103(b), including 

published agendas and meeting minutes, an approved Governance Charter 

that is reviewed and updated annually, a written process for selecting a 

board that is reviewed and updated at least once every five years, evidence 

required for designating a single HMIS for the Continuum, and monitoring 

reports of recipients and subrecipients; and 

 

3. Evidence that the Housing First Solano Continuum of Care has prepared the 

application for funds as set forth in 24 CFR §578.9, including the designation 

of the eligible applicant to be the collaborative applicant. 

 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

93



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 14 

f. If any litigation, claim, or audit is started before the expiration of the five-year 

period, the records shall be retained until all litigation, claims or audit findings 

involving the records have been resolved and final action taken. 

 

g. All documents, correspondences, minutes and records are made available to Board 

members and a website is maintained to readily make documents available to 

members of the public.   

 

ARTICLE X:  FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 

The JPA shall establish policies and procedures governing its financial management 

system.  The policies and procedures for the JPA’s financial management system shall be 

consistent with Subpart E—Cost Principles of 2 CFR 200.302 regarding financial 

management; 2 CFR 200.305 with regards to payment; 2 CFR 200.328 regarding 

monitoring and reporting program performance; 2 CFR 200.333 regarding retention 

requirements for records; 2 CFR 200.334 regarding requests for transfer of records; 2 CFR 

200.335 regarding methods for collection, transmission and storage of information; 2 CFR 

200.336 regarding access to records; and 2 CFR 200.337 regarding reporting requirements 

and restrictions on public access to records).  The system similarly shall be compliant with 

2 CFR 200.450 with regards to lobbying. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XI:  INTERNAL CONTROLS 

 

The JPA Board shall: 

 

a. Establish and maintain effective internal controls over all Federal awards that 

provides reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the Federal 

award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of the Federal award. These internal controls shall follow guidance in 

“Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government” issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States or the “Internal Control Integrated 

Framework”, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO). 

 

b. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the 

Federal awards. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

94



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 15 

 

c. Evaluate and monitor the JPA’s compliance with statutes, regulations and the terms 

and conditions of Federal awards. 

 

d. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 

noncompliance identified in audit findings. 

 

ARTICLE XII: JPA/COC GRIEVANCE POLICY 

 

The JPA has adopted a participant grievance policy that applies to all participants in 

programs funded by the Community Action Partnership Solano Joint Powers Authority 

(CAP Solano JPA) and/or receiving any funding through the Housing First Solano 

Continuum of Care (HFS CoC). The policy provides participants with the right to grieve any 

situation where they are denied services/discharged by a JPA or CoC-funded program, 

whether that denial is due to rule violations, non-compliance with program requirements, 

or not meeting eligibility requirements. The goal of this policy is to provide program 

participants and service providers with a fair and equitable process. See the full Grievance 

Policy here.  

 

Grievance Advisory Committee. The Grievance Advisory Committee (GAC) is a 

joint committee of the CAP Solano JPA and Housing First Solano CoC. It shall have 

representation from the JPA and CoC Boards, the CAP Solano JPA Tripartite 

Advisory Board, and shall include service providers and people with lived 

experiences of homelessness. This committee shall have authority to oversee the 

grievance process and make recommendations for improvements to the CoC and 

JPA Boards. The GAC may also review grievance-related policies and operations of 

JPA or CoC-funded programs and, where appropriate, make recommendations for 

improvement to the CAP Solano JPA. The GAC will hold public meetings with full 

transparency and will identify a Chair or Co-chairs who will coordinate and lead 

committee meetings and identify panelists for grievance panels. Applications to the 

GAC from HFS CoC members will be reviewed and voted on for approval by the 

CoC Board. Applications from community members who do not serve on any of the 

aforementioned boards or are not current members of the CoC will be reviewed and 

voted on for approval by both the JPA and CoC Boards. A new call for applicants 

will be released when necessary, to ensure GAC members represent all 

aforementioned interests and the committee is comprised of at least 10 members. 

For more information see the CAP Solano JPA and Housing First Solano CoC 

Grievance Policy. 
 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

95

https://homebase.box.com/s/iq3hbxo4jbwb62x79xj1p2yr7g796w39
https://homebase.box.com/s/iq3hbxo4jbwb62x79xj1p2yr7g796w39
https://homebase.box.com/s/mwvgzacah3tthzqjcj2s6e73px2e6goq
https://homebase.box.com/s/iq3hbxo4jbwb62x79xj1p2yr7g796w39
https://homebase.box.com/s/iq3hbxo4jbwb62x79xj1p2yr7g796w39


COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 16 

ARTICLE XIII:  PROCUREMENT 

 

The JPA shall establish procurement procedures which reflect applicable State, local, and 

tribal laws and regulations, provided that the procurements conform to applicable Federal 

law and the standards identified in 2 CFR 200.318 and 2 CFR 200.319.  

 

ARTICLE XIV: HMIS LEAD 

 
In its role as HMIS Lead to the Housing First Solano Continuum of Care, the JPA shall 

comply with the Housing First Solano Continuum of Care HMIS Policies and Procedures 

Manual. 

 

ARTICLE XV: SUBRECIPIENT MONITORING 

 
Pursuant to 24 CFR 578.23(c)(ii), the JPA Board shall monitor subrecipients at least 

annually.  The JPA Board shall follow the monitoring policies and procedures outlined in 

CPD Monitoring Handbook 6509.2 and any of its future revisions. 

 

ARTICLE XVI:  DRUG FREE WORKPLACE 

 
The JPA shall operate in accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C. 

701, et seq.) and HUD's implementing regulations at 2 CFR part 2429, and any 

amendments to those provisions hereafter.   

 

ARTICLE XVII:  SEPARABILITY 

 

If any section, subsection, paragraph or phrase of these bylaws is for any reason held to be 

illegal or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portion of the bylaws.  

 

ARTICLE XVIII:  LIABILITY 

 

Each officer shall be covered by their respective jurisdictions and the JPA shall carry 

general liability insurance for liability incurred by the JPA as an entity only and not for 

any acts committed by individual JPA officers. 

 

ARTICLE XIX:  AMENDMENTS 

 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

96

https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=89450cc597955157f0392deeabdb3199&term_occur=1&term_src=Title:2:Subtitle:A:Chapter:II:Part:200:Subpart:D:Subjgrp:31:200.318
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/index.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=5b93c604f1f17967087eac820a6d3ba3&term_occur=7&term_src=Title:24:Subtitle:A:Part:5:Subpart:A:5.105


COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP SOLANO 
JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY 

 

BYLAWS 
 

 17 

Proposed bylaw amendments shall be presented at a regular meeting of the Board and 

voted on at the next regular meeting. These bylaws thereto may be amended only at a 

meeting with a quorum present, by a two-thirds majority vote of the Board members 

present.  

 

In the event of an emergency, such as when bylaw amendments are required in order to 

meet the deadline for a grant application, the Board may vote to approve bylaw 

amendments upon 72-hours’ notice to the public.  

 

 

Adopted: May 25, 2017; updated June 2021. 

Item 12 
Attachment 2

97



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

98



Item 12 
Attachment 3

99



Item 12 
Attachment 3

100



Item 12 
Attachment 3

101



Item 12 
Attachment 3

102



Item 12 
Attachment 3

103



Item 12 
Attachment 3

104



Item 12 
Attachment 3

105



Item 12 
Attachment 3

106



Item 12 
Attachment 3

107



Item 12 
Attachment 3

108



Item 12 
Attachment 3

109



Item 12 
Attachment 3

110



Item 12 
Attachment 3

111



Item 12 
Attachment 3

112



Item 12 
Attachment 3

113



Item 12 
Attachment 3

114



PREPARED BY:  Greg Folsom, City Manager 

  

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022 

 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Adoption of Resolution No. 2022-____: Resolution of support 

for designation of the Wednesday Club of Suisun on the National Register of Historic Places 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  There would be a no fiscal impact to the City. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Provide Good Governance. 

 

STAFF REPORT:  The State Office of Historic Preservation has notified the Mayor that the 

Wednesday Club of Suisun, located at 225 Sacramento Street, has been nominated for consideration 

by the State Historical Resources Commission (SHRC) for inclusion in the National Register of 

Historic Places at their next meeting.  An excerpt of the nomination application states the following: 

 

“Wednesday Club of Suisun is eligible for the National Register of Historic Places under 

Criterion A in the area of Social History, at the local level of significance, for its role in early 

20th century women’s clubs and civic improvement in the community of Suisun, and under 

Criterion C as locally significant example of the work of master architect William Henry 

Crim, Junior.” 

 

The SHRC meets quarterly and their next meeting is on Friday, April 29, 2022.  The State Historic 

Preservation Officer has requested that any local government comments regarding the National 

Register eligibility of this property be received at least fifteen days prior to the quarterly meeting.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 

2022-____: Resolution of support for designation of the Wednesday Club of Suisun on the National 

Register of Historic Places 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution No. 2022-____: Resolution of support for designation of the Wednesday Club of 

Suisun on the National Register of Historic Places  

2. Letter from State Office of Historic Preservation, including Meeting Notice and 

Nomination form. 

Item 13

115



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

116



 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SUISUN CITY 

SUPPORTING THE DESIGNATION OF THE WEDNESDAY CLUB OF SUISUN ON 

THE NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 

 

WHEREAS, the Wednesday Club of Suisun was designed by San Francisco-based 

master architect William Henry Crim, Jr. and constructed in 1925; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Wednesday Club of Suisun was built as the meeting place for a 

group of civic-minded women dedicated to community improvement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the architecture of the building contribute to the aptness of the building 

for its intended purpose as the focus for community events, social gatherings, and lectures; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the building is well-maintained and in excellent condition and retains its 

original site, setting and design; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Wednesday Club maintains the feeling and association and has 

functioned continuously in the same capacity for which it was built nearly a century ago; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Wednesday Club possesses all seven aspects of historic integrity 

identified by the National Park Service: location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, 

feeling, and association. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Suisun 

City, California, that the City Manager shall provide this Resolution, along with a cover letter, 

supporting the designation of the Wednesday Club of Suisun on the National Register of Historic 

Places. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Suisun City duly held on March 15, 2022, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:  Council Members: 

NOES:  Council Members: 

ABSENT:  Council Members: 

ABSTAIN: Council Members: 

 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said City this 15th day of March 2022.  

 

 

_________________________________  

Anita Skinner 

City Clerk 

 

Item 13 
Attachment 1

117



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

118



Item 13 
Attachment 2

119



Item 13 
Attachment 2

120



Item 13 
Attachment 2

121



Item 13 
Attachment 2

122



Item 13 
Attachment 2

123



Item 13 
Attachment 2

124



Item 13 
Attachment 2

125



Item 13 
Attachment 2

126



Item 13 
Attachment 2

127



Item 13 
Attachment 2

128



Item 13 
Attachment 2

129



Item 13 
Attachment 2

130



Item 13 
Attachment 2

131



Item 13 
Attachment 2

132



Item 13 
Attachment 2

133



Item 13 
Attachment 2

134



Item 13 
Attachment 2

135



Item 13 
Attachment 2

136



Item 13 
Attachment 2

137



Item 13 
Attachment 2

138



Item 13 
Attachment 2

139



Item 13 
Attachment 2

140



Item 13 
Attachment 2

141



Item 13 
Attachment 2

142



Item 13 
Attachment 2

143



Item 13 
Attachment 2

144



Item 13 
Attachment 2

145



Item 13 
Attachment 2

146



Item 13 
Attachment 2

147



Item 13 
Attachment 2

148



Item 13 
Attachment 2

149



Item 13 
Attachment 2

150



Item 13 
Attachment 2

151



Item 13 
Attachment 2

152



Item 13 
Attachment 2

153



Item 13 
Attachment 2

154



Item 13 
Attachment 2

155



Item 13 
Attachment 2

156



Item 13 
Attachment 2

157



Item 13 
Attachment 2

158



Item 13 
Attachment 2

159



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

160



PREPARED BY: Kris Lofthus, Recreation, Parks, and Marina Director 

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY: Greg Folsom, City Manager 

AGENDA TRANSMITTAL 
 

MEETING DATE:  March 15, 2022 
 

CITY AGENDA ITEM:  Council Discussion and Direction: Community Christmas Tree 

Replacement 
 

FISCAL IMPACT:  None at this time 
 

STRATEGIC PLAN IMPACT:  Provide Good Governance 
  

BACKGROUND:  The Christmas Tree used each year for Christmas on the Waterfront has lived 

its useful life.  Early in 2021 staff hired an arborist to inspect the tree and provide an estimated life 

expectancy for the tree.  Their estimate was 2-5 years with recommended modifications to the 

watering cycle and soil amendments.  Efforts were made to prolong the trees life by adhering to 

the recommendations provided, but those efforts were unsuccessful.  Last year, 2021, was the last 

year of life for the Community Christmas Tree. 
 

STAFF REPORT:  The City is in need of replacing the current tree located in the waterfront area.  

This tree is the central gathering point for the Christmas on the Waterfront event and is decorated 

annually for the community to enjoy.  There are 4 options available as replacement trees and they 

are as follows: 

 

• 35’ Artificial Christmas Tree   $40,000-$50,000 

• Planting a 25’ Live Tree (new location) $10,000-$15,000 

• Live Tree Every Year    $10,000-$15,000 annually 

• Use Existing Tree (Solano & Kellogg) $2,000 - $5,000 (tree trimming) 

 

This item was brought to the Recreation, Parks, Marina, & Arts Commission on February 16, 2022 

and after a lengthy discussion they unanimously voted that their first recommendation was to use the 

existing tree at the corner of Solano Street and Kellogg Street.  Their second choice would be to 

purchase an artificial tree.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended Council provide direction on a Community 

Christmas Tree Replacement. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Power Point Presentation 

Item 15

161



1

Discussion & Direction
Community Christmas Tree 

Replacement Options

Background

• The Christmas Tree used each year for Christmas on the
Waterfront has lived its useful life.  Early in 2021 staff
hired an arborist to inspect the tree and help prolong the
tree’s life.

• We were unsuccessful in that effort and the tree is now
dead

1

2

Item 15 
Attachment 1

162



2

Current Health of the Tree

Replacement Options

• Use an artificial tree
• Plant a live tree in a new location
• Purchase and raise a live tree each year
• Use an existing tree at the corner of

Kellogg and Solano

3

4

Item 15 
Attachment 1

163



3

Artificial Tree

Cost: $40,000-$50,000 (based on 2021 pricing)

Pros: Reusable for up to an estimated 20 years
Pre-Lit for ease of decorating
Environmentally Sustainable

Cons: Installation and Removal - $3,000 annual cost
Storage – must be stored indoors
Replacement cost if damaged
Purchasing Cost

Planting Live Tree in New Location

Cost: $10,000-$15,000

Pros: One Time Purchase
Environmentally Sustainable
Select the Location of the Tree

Cons: 25’ is the maximum tree available now
Time and Dedication to nurture the transplant
Purchase Cost

5

6

Item 15 
Attachment 1

164



4

Fresh Cut Tree Annually

Cost: $10,000-$15,000

Pros: Able to select different variety of tree

Able to Move Location of the Tree

Cons: Installation and Removal - $5,000 annual cost
Annual Purchase Price Will Increase
Not Environmentally Friendly

Use Existing City Tree
Corner of Solano St. & Kellogg St.

Cost: $2,000-$5,0000 (pruning surrounding trees)

Pros: Minimal Cost

Environmentally Responsible

Recommended by RPMA Commission

Cons: Tree Location Not on the Water

May need to remove 1 existing tree

7

8

Item 15 
Attachment 1

165



5

Use Existing City Tree
Corner of Solano St. & Kellogg St.

Questions or Comments?

9

10

Item 15 
Attachment 1

166


	Agenda - 5:30 pm Special Closed Session Meeting 
	Agenda - 7:00 pm Special Open Session Meeting of the City Council
	Item 2 - Proclamation Proclaiming March 2022 as Red Cross Month
	Item 5 - Remote Teleconference Meeting Procedures
	Item 6 - Accepting the 2021 Annual Progress Report of the General of the General Plan and Housing Element
	Item 7 - Approving a Priority List of Community Events for FY 2022-23
	Item 8 - Contract with GSM Landscape Architects, Inc. for Development of a Parks and Facilities Master Plan
	Item 9 - Contract Change Order with Lamassu Utility Services for the Highway 12 Storm Drain Pipe Lining and CCTV Inspection Project
	Item 10 - Approving Application for Grant Funds for the Recreational Trails Program
	Item 11 - Accepting Rapid Flashing Beacon Project as Complete and Authorizing the Notice of Completion for Project
	Item 12 - Endorsing Support for Amending the Governance Structure of CAP Solano Joint Powers Authority
	Item 13 - Resolution of Support for Designation of Wednesday Club of Suisun on the National Register of Historic Places
	Item 15 - Discussion and Direction - Community Christmas Tree Replacement



